M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
~ the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for qualified opinion:

We draw attention in respect of non compliance of sub section (1) of section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to appointment of whole-time Chief Executive Officer, whole-
time Chief Financial Officer and whole-time Company Secretary (Refer Note no 16).

Qualified Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2016;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date;
and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;




(c)

(d)

(e)

Q)

(8)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure “B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us: '

(i) The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

(i) The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556

MUKUL M. PATEL

Partner

Membership No. 32489
Place: Mumbai
Date:25% May, 2016



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of even date

(M

(i)

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence, clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable.

Considering the nature of the business of the Company is not required to purchase
any inventory and hence, clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans to parties, covered in the register maintained

(iv)

v)

under section 189 of the Act, and hence, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loan to directors directly or indirectly and also no
investment has made by the company and hence, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable.

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence, clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not required

to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the Central
Government of India vide notification dated 1 April 2014.

(vii) Inrespect to statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
books and records as produced before us, in our opinion, there is no delay in
payment of tax deducted at source by the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax,
customs duty and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any
disputes.

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,

(ix)

(x)

banks, government or debenture holders during the year and hence, clause 3(viii) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year and hence, clause
3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit. = "




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided
during the year for managerial remuneration and hence, clause 3(xi) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company and hence, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures and hence, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence, clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company it is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

,/WA/X@%//

Mukul M. Patel

Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai

Date:

25t May, 2016



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARSHIYA
CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31ST March 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

R

Mukul M. Patel
Partner

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



e ® e

Arshiya

Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Financial Statement for the

Financial Year 2015-16




Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)

. Asat As at
Particulars Note No.
€Y% | 31stMarch,2016 | 31stMarch, 2015
L. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 3 21,38,40,230 21,38,40,230
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 (21,39,03,920) 70,67,04,523
(63,690) 92,05,44,753
2, CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Other Current Liabilities 5 85,883 9,84,103
85,883 9,84,103
Total 22,193 92,15,28,856
II. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Long-Term Loans and Advances 6 - 92,15,06,549
- 92,15,06,549
2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 22,193 22,307
22,193 22,307
Total 22,193 92,15,28,856
Significant Accounting Policies . 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to17

As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 107556W

/WimXa (ﬁ//

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No.: 32489

A
0%

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

e LH A

Archana A Mittal
Director
DIN No.: 00703208

NIy A GO S

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN No.: 00613576




Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in )

. Note Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
" No. | 31stMarch,2016 | 31stMarch,2015
Revenue from Operations - -
Total - -
Expenses:
Other Expenses 8 1,04,235 88,826
Total 1,04,235 88,826
Loss before Exceptional Item and Prior Period Adjustment (1,04,235) (88,826)
Exceptional Item 9 92,04,92,972 4,043
Prior Period Adjustment 10 11,236 -
Loss for the year (92,06,08,443) (92,869)
Earnings per equity share
Basic and Diluted 12 (43.051) (0.004)
Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to17
As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W
' ﬁ\&ﬂa)\hﬂ N mawieers
Mukul Patel . Archana A Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Sty Director Director

Membership No.: 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016

DIN No.: 00703208

DIN No.: 00613576




Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016
(Amount in )

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Loss for the year (92,06,08,443) (92,869)
Adjustment for:
Irrecoverable advances written off 92,04,92,972 4,043
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (1,15,471) (88,826)
Adjusted for:
(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (8,98,220) (24,029)
Decrease in Non-Current Assets 10,13,577 1,12,855
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (114) -
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 22,307 22,307
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 22,193 22,307

As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 107556W

/WIAITE ebonsbbhah  wsmesen

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Mukul Patel B NY X Archana A Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner . ; Director Director
DIN No.: 00703208 DIN No.: 00613576

Membership No.: 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016
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Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated on June 21, 2008 with the object of setting up Free Trade Warehousing Zone and to
carry on such other related activities. The Company was formerly known as "Arshiya Central Logistics Infrastructure
Limited" and its name has been changed to "Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited" w.e.f. 27/04/2010.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP") and are in conformity with
mandatory accounting standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as prescribed under the Section
133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions
of the Act (to the extent notified).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses for the year. The difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which
the results are known or materialised.

Accounting for Taxes on Income
Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference between
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred Tax assets are not recognised unless
there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realised.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic benefits in the form
of adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company and the assets can be measured reliably.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle an obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not
discounted and is determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the year-end date.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company.

Contingent Assets are not recognised or disclosed in the financial statements.
Earnings per Share:
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and
diluted equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Cash Flow Statement:
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements
and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally. accepted accounting

principles followed by the Company.




Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in )

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
3. Share Capital
Authorised
2,50,00,000 (previous year 2,50,00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 25,00,00,000 25,00,00,000
2,13,84,023 (previous year 2,13,84,023) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up 21,38,40,230 21,38,40,230
Total 21,38,40,230 21,38,40,230

(a) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10/-per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is
subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting.

[n the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year

Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Number 4 Number g
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230
Balance as at the end of the year 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230
(c) Shares held by Holding Company/ Fellow Subsidiary Company
As at Asat
Name of Share Holder 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Number T Number L4
Arshiya Limited* 1,10,50,000 11,05,00,000 1,10,50,000 11,05,00,000
Arshiya Hong Kong Limited 1,03,34,023 10,33,40,230 1,03,34,023 10,33,40,230
Total 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230
(d) Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at As at
Name of Share Holder 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
No of Equity % Holding in the | No of Equity shares held | % Holding in the class
shares held class
Arshiya Limited* 1,10,50,000 52% 1,10,50,000 52%
Arshiya Hong Kong Limited 1,03,34,023 48% 1,03,34,023 48%
Total 2,13,84,023 100% 2,13,84,023 100%

* Notes :-
(i} Shares held by the Holding Company include 600 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section 89 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(i1) As per Records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from the shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.




Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)
. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
4. Reserve & Surplus .
Security Premium
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 71,88,63,015 71,88,63,015
Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit & loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (1,21,58,492) (1,20,65,623)
Loss for the year (92,06,08,443) (92,869)
Balance as at the end of the year (93,27,66,935) (1,21,58,492)
Total {21,39,03,920) 70,67,04!523
5. Other Current Liabilities
Creditors for Expenses (Refer Note No.14) 85,883 9,84,103
Total 85,883 9,84,103
6. Long Term Loans & Advances
{Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advances to Holding Company for purchase of land (Refer Note No.11) - 92,15,06,549
Total - 92!15E06!549
7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Bank 22,193 22,307
Total 22,193 22,307




Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
8. Other Expenses

Legal and Professional fees 11,450 18,500

Auditors Remuneration -

Audit fees 51,525 22,472

Miscellaneous expenses 41,260 47,854
Total 1!045235 88,826

9. Exceptional Item

Irrecoverable advances written off (Refer Note No. 11} 92,04,92,972 4,043
Total 92!04!92!972 4,043

10. Prior Period Adjustment

Legal and Professional fees 11,236 -
Total 1;52_36 -
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Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

The Company had given advance to Arshiya Limited (the holding company) for purchase of land at Nagpur (Near Bori Village)
which is notified as Free Trade and Warehousing Zone by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry (Department of Commerce),
Government of India. Arshiya Limited has forfeited the advance of *92,04,92,972/- on account of non compliance of the terms

of the Memorandum of Understanding dated 25th March, 2016.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Loss for the year () (92,06,08,443) (92,869)
Number of Equity Shares 2,13,84,023 2,13,84,023
Nominal value per share (%) 10 10
Basic and Diluted EPS (43.051) {0.004)

Related Party and its relationship

Related party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard 18 “Related Party disclosures” as given below (with whom

transaction has been entered):

Name of Related Parties and Related Party relationship

Name of the Related Parties Relationship
Arshiya Limited Holding Company
Mrs. Archana A Mittal - Director (w.e.f. 01/03/2016)

Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director Key Managerial
Mr. Ranjit Ray - Director Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Binu Jacob - Director (w.e.f. 27/11/2014)

Note:

The Related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS 18 and

same have been relied upon by the auditors.

The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties are as follow:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2016 31st March 2015

Advance for acquisition of land

Balance as on 1st April, 2015 92,15,06,549 92,16,19,404

Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company by the Holding Company 10,13,577 1,12,856

Irrecoverable advance written off ' 92,04,92,972 -

Closing Balance as at the end of the year - 92,15,06,549
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Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S. No. Description Asat Asat
31st March 2016 31st March 2015
a) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -
b) Interest due on above - -
<) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the yearthe - -

d) Interest paid - -

e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -

f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
g) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in - -
succeeding years

Note: Dues to Micro and Small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information collected by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

Taxation

In view of loss for the year computed as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”), no provision for taxation
has been made.

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. However, since the availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off
is not possible to be ascertained with virtual certainty, Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognised as a measure of
abundant caution.

As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 the Company is required to appoint Managing
Director or Whole Time Director or Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary. However, the
Company has not complied with the said requirements and is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for these roles.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform to those of current year's
classification/disclosures.

Signature to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M. A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W

/AT oad Tl wesmicons

Mukul Patel : Archana A Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner L Director Director
Membership No. 32489 - DIN No.: 00703208 DIN No.: 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

I. Equity and Liabilities

1. Shareholder's funds

—Amount in Rupees

(a) Share capital 4 14,99,29,950 14,99,29,950
(b) Reserves and surplus 5 1,10,15,32,845 2,01,40,90,279
1,25,14,62,795 2,16,40,20,229
2. Non-Current liabilities
(a) Long term borrowings 6 21,97,28,569 3,57,08,31,488
(b) Long term provisions 7 10,76,063 4,91,166
22,08,04,632 3,57,13,22,654
3. Current liabilities
(a) Trade payables 8 1,53,32,244 62,79,539
(b) Other current liabilities 9 5,90,19,54,349 1,84,04,97,564
(c) Short term Provisions 7 2,94,228 2,38,613
5,91,75,80,821 1,84,70,15,716
Total 7,38,98,48,248 7!58!23!58!599
II1. Assets
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 10
(i) Tangible assets 7,27,19,72,101 7,42,87,09,771
(ii) Intangible assets - 3,74,757
(iii) Capital work-in-progress - 3,90,55,683
7,27,19,72,101 7,46,81,40,211
(b) Long-term loans and advances 11 15,33,800 80,41,325
7,27,35,05,901 7,47,61,81,536
2, Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 1,20,29,048 -
(b) Trade receivables 13 - 20,72,247
(c) Cash and bank balances 14 1,66,078 3,88,254
(d) Short-term loans and advances 11 10,41,47,221 10,37,16,562
11,63,42,347 10,61,77,063
Total 7,38,98,48,248 7,58,23,58,599
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial 1-39

statements

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

2

Mukul Patel

Partner
Membership Number: 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Ajay S Mittal

Director
DIN : 00226355

e

WO AR OO

Navnit Choudhary

Director
DIN : 00613576




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Amount /n Rupees

I. Revenue:
Revenue from operations 15 - 18,00,000
Other income 16 1,05,757 10,72,612
Total Revenue 1,05,757 28,72,612
II. Expenses:
Cost of operations 17 - 5,05,620
Employee benefits 18 2,46,07,625 1,54,88,103
Finance costs 19 69,46,35,944 54,72,65,110
Depreciation and amortization 10 16,23,00,820 16,36,18,234
Other expenses 20 1,07,30,039 1,12,17,216
Total Expenses 89,22,74,428 73,80,94,283
III. Loss before Exceptional items and Tax (I - II) (89,21,68,671) (73,52,21,671)
IV Exceptional items (net) 33 2,03,88,763 22,23,096
V ' Loss for the year (91,25,57,434) (73,74,44,767)
Earnings per equity share: 27
Basic and Diluted (60.87) (49.19)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-39

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

W & A
Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 032489 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Amount in Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss for the year (91,25,57,434) (73,74,44,767)
Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation 16,23,00,820 16,36,18,234
Fixed Assets written off 1,74,64,823 82,07,055
Finance expense 69,46,35,944 54,72,65,110
Fees for restructuring 30,00,000 -
Sundry balances written back (net) (17,17,231) (63,83,083)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (3,68,73,078) (2,47,37,451)
Movement in working capital

Increase/(decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (21,49,709) (15,55,592)
(Increase)/decrease in Trade and Others Receivable 81,31,043 (63,59,748)
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (3,08,91,744) (3,26,52,791)
Income Tax Refunds 18,070 1,43,409
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (3,08,73,674) (3,25,09,382)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (62,63,768) -
Sale of Fixed Assets - 6,14,375
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) |______ (62,63,768)]  6,14,375 |
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/(Repayment) of long term borrowings 3,69,15,266 6,97,45,700
Interest paid - (5,16,91,878)
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 3,69,15,266 1,80,53,822
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,22,176) (1,38,41,185)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,88,254 1,42,29,439
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,66,078 3,88,254 |

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co. ‘For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Firm Registration Number 107556W

Aoty Newmies
Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 032489 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

1 General Information

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company incorporated
under the Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited, a Company
listed in the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange (NSE).

The Company is engaged in providing facility of warehousing including temperature controlled storage
and other cargo/logistics related activities through Inland Container Depot (ICD).

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP")
and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, as prescribed under the Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act (to the extent notified).

These financial statements are prepared by applying the “Going Concern” assumption based on future
business plans.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the
results are known or materialised.

(ii) Fixed Assets and capital work in progress

(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit availed, if any) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except land which is carried at its revalued
amount being the estimated market value on the date of revaluation. All costs including borrowing cost
incurred during pre-operational period till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized.

(b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The capitalized cost of software
includes license fees, cost of implementation and system integration services. These costs are
capitalized as intangible assets in the year in which related software is implemented.

(c) Capital work-in-progress
The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost comprising direct
costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

(iii) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised
till the date of commencement of commercial operations as part of cost of such assets. All other
borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

(iv) Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Depreciation on all Tangible Assets is provided on the stralght line method at the rates and manner in
accordance with Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Amortisation of intangible assets other than (c) below, are provided on a straight-line basis over a period
of three to six years from the date of its implementation based on management’s estimate of useful life
over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(c) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including expenditure on
implementation is amortised over a period of ten years based on management’s estimate of useful life
over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

(v) Leases
Finance Lease

(a) Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability is recognized at
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease. Initial costs directly attributable to lease are recognized with the asset under
lease.

Operating lease
(b) Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as expenses on
accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

(vi) Inventory
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

(vii) Revenue Recognition

(a) Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area is accounted on accrual basis as per
agreed terms.

(b) Revenue from value added services and other activities is recognized based on completion of agreed
contracted services.

(c) Interest and other income is accounted on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain
in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

(viii) Employee benefits -

Employee benefits include schemes such as provident fund, gratuity and leave encashment entitlements.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund is charged to the Statement of

Profit and Lass, as and when accrued.

Defined Benefit Plan

The liability for Leave encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis as per the Accounting
Standard -15 “Employee Benefits” (AS 15) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(ix) Foreign Currency Transactions

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the date of
the transaction. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange
rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(x) Accounting for Taxes on Income

(a) Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax Act, 1961.




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(b) Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.
Deferred Tax assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

(c) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax liability, is recognized as an asset only when, based on
convincing evidence, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the
Company and the assets can be measured reliably.

(xi) Impairment
At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made for impairment
loss on fixed assets by considering the indications that an impairment loss may have occurred in
accordance with Accounting Standard - 28 “Impairment of Assets” (AS-28) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(xii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(a) A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation and in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted and is determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the year-end date.

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company.

(c) Contingent Assets are not recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

(xii) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and diluted equivalent shares outstanding during the year; except when the
results would be anti-dilutive.

{xiv) Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash
Flow Statements which presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the

Company.

(xv) Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles followed by the Company.




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

4. Share capital ] __Amount in Rupees
Authorised
2,00,00,000 (2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 20,00,00,000 20.00,00.000
Issued. Subscribed and fullv paid:
1,49,92,995 (1,49,92,995) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 14,99,29,950 14,99,29,950
Total 14,99,29,950 14,99,29,950

(a) Terms and rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{b)Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year

—1,49,92.995 149920950 |  1,49.92,995 | 14,99,29,950
Balance as at the end of the year 1,49,92,995 14 29,95 2 14 2

Arshiya Limited * 1,35,86,659 13,58,66,590 1,35,86,659 13,58.,66.590
Cyberlog Technologies (UAE) FZE, the Fellow 14,06,336 1,40,63,360 14,06,336 1,40,63,360
Subsidiary

Total 1,49,92,995 14,99,29,950 1,49,92,995 14,99,29,950

Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more h regate Equity Shares i

Equity Share of Rs 10/~ fully paid up

Arshiva Limited * 1,35,86.659 90.62 1.35.86,659 90.62

Cyberlog Technologies (UAE) FZE 14,06,336 9.38 14,06,336 9.38
Total 1,49,92,995 100.00 1,49,92,995 100.00 |

* Notes :-
(i) Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section 89

of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) As per Records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from the
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

Amount in Rupees

Securities Premium

Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 2,75,75,17,492 2,75,75,17,492
Revaluation Reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,05,25,46,008 1,05,25,46,008
Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss )

Balance as at the beginning of the year (1,79,59,73,221) (1,05,82,19,213)
Less: Adjustment for Depreciation . - (3,09,241)
Loss for the year (91,25,57,434) (73,74,44,767)
Balance as at the end of the year 52!70!85@0!6552 (1,79,59,73,221)

Total 1,10,15,32,845 2,01,40,90,279




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

6.Long term borrowings

Amount in Rupees

Secured Loans* (Refer Note No. 29)
Term Loans (Refer Note (a) below)
From Banks - 3,34,06,54,610 3,87,36,81,310 53,25,68,126
From Others 12,00,74,529 16,69,79,530 7,35,24,926 2,66,19,925
12,00,74,529 3,50,76,34,140 3,94,72,06,236 55,91,88,051
Unsecured Loans (Refer Note No.(b) below)
From Holding Company 5,38,92,163 4,36,01,654 - -
From Fellow Subsidiary Companies 4.57,61,877 1,95,95,694 - -
9,96,54,040 6,31,97,348 - -
Less: Amount disclosed under the head "other - - (3,94,72,06,236) (55,91,88,051)
current liabilities" (Refer Note No. 9)
Total 21,97,28,569 3,57.08,31,488 - -

* During the year Secured CDR Lenders has exited from CDR package and as per letter dated 31st July, 2015 issued by CDR-EG approving
the exit from CDR on account of failure of the restructuring package (Refer Note No 29). Accordingly on exit from CDR, the company will
be governed by original loan agreement instead of CDR agreement and hence Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) created during the tenure
of CDR is transferred to Interest Accrued and due (Refer Note No 9).

(a) The Term loans are secured as under :-

(i) Securities provided :

- First mortgage charge on all immovable properties (including equipments) and assets of the Company - both present and future
- First charge by way of hypothecation of all the movable assets including debtors, present and future.
- First charge/assignment and/or creation of security interest in favour of Lenders.

- Personal guarantee of two Directors of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company
- Pledge of all the Equity Share of the Company held by the Holding Company.

- Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

(ii) Rate of Interest is 11% p.a. upto 31.03.2015 and 13% p.a. thereafter

(iii) Repayment Schedule of Secured Loans as on 31-03-2016 is as follows :-

2012-2013 8.45,05.305 9,16,883 8.54,22,188
2013-2014 23,66,63,995 1,20,36,006 24,87,00,001
2014-2015 31,16,50,414 1,58,49,586 32,75,00,000
2015-2016 37,82,62,715 1,92,37,284 39,74,99,999
2016-2017 50,11,14,833 2,54,85,167 52,66,00,000
2017-2018 59,48.,47,858 3.02,52,142 62.51.00,000
2018-2019 74,52,96,502 3.79.03.499 78,32,00,001
2019-2020 82,23,76,452 4,18,23,549 86,42,00,001
2020-2021 19,89,63,236 1,00,95,339 20,90,58,575

Total 7 1,310 19,35,99,455 4,06,72,80,765

8,45,05,305 188
2013-14 23,66,63,995 24, 87 00 001
2014-15 31,16,50,414 32,75,00,000
Jun-15 8,33,60,538 42 39 462 8.76.00,000
Jul-15 3,15,75,01,058 - 3,15,75,01,058
Sep-15 - 49,99,274 49,99,274
Dec-15 - 49,99,274 49,99,274
Mar-16 - 49,99,274 49,99,274
Total 2,87.36,81,310 |

(b) Loan from Holding Company and fellow Subsidiary Companies
Interest free loan repayable after 12 months but before 5 years.




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

7. Provisions

Amount in Rupees

Emplovee Benefits .

Gratuity (Refer Note No. 24) 5,77,105 1,76,637 - -

Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 24) 4,98,958 3,14,529 2,94,228 2,38,613
Total 10,76,063 4,91,166 2,94,228 2,38,613

8. Trad payables

Trade Payabls (efer Note No. 23 & 36)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises*

1,53,32,244

Amount in Rupees

62,79,539

Total

1,53,32,244

62,79,539

* Includes Rs. 1,32,94,174/- crores which are outstanding for more than 1 year. The Company is of the view that these dues will be paid

during 2016-17 and hence presented as "Current”.

9.0ther current liabilities

Amount in Rupees

* Includes aggregating to Rs 387,32,22,736 recalled by Banks.
** Includes aggregating to Rs 179,34,49,675 Interest accrued and due on loans recalled by Banks.

***Includes aggregating to Rs.1,00,80,020/- crores which are outstanding for more than 1 year. The Company is of the view that these
dues will be paid during 2016-17 and hence presented as "Current".
Details of Unpaid Interest on term loan as on 31-03-2016 is as follows :

2014-15 2,54,42,910
Apr-15 -

May-15
Jun-15
Jul-15
Aua-15
Sep-15
Oct-15
Nov-15
Dec-15
Jan-16
Feb-16
Mar-16

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note No. 6 & 29)
Term Loans from Banks* 3.87,36,81,310 53,25,68,126
Term Loan from Other 7,35,24,926 2,66,19,925
3,94,72,06,236 55,91,88,051
Interest accrued and due on
Term Loans from Banks ** 1,79.34,49,675 1,10.44,32,126
Term Loans from Other 5,55,48,452 5,59,95,597
1,84,89,98,127 1,16,04,27,723
Other Liabilities
Project Creditors (Refer Note No. 23 & 36) 4,70,93,636 6.52,48,475
27,16,775 33,10,502
Employee's Dues*** 1,45,13,198 1,24,53,095
6,43,23,609 8,10,12,072
Statutory Liabilities
Tax Deducted at Source 2,77,51,782 3,03,73,830
Provident Fund & Profession Tax 85,982 61,220
Entry Tax - 8,53,762
Works Contract Tax 1,77,665 3,81,633
Interest payable on delayed payment of Statutory dues 1,34,10,948 81,99,273
4,14,26,377 3,98,69,718
Total 19,54,349 | 1,84.04,97,564

Total 5.55.,48.452
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Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Amount in Rupees

GHTEons

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Capital advances 15,33,800 80,11,325 - -
Deposits - 30,000 - -
15,33,800 80,41,325 - -
Other Loans and Advances
Income Tax Payments (net) - - - 18,070
Prepaid expenses - - 3,76,734 28,432
Other advances - - 1,15,813 7,47,246
Indirect Tax receivables - - 10,36,54,674 10,29,22,814
- - 10,41,47,221 10,37,16,562
Total 15,33,800 80,41,325 10,41,47,221 10,37,16,562

12.Inventories

Stores and Spares

1,20,29,048

Amount in Rupees

Total

1,20,29,048

13.Trade receivables

[ (nsecur, conird good)

Outstanding for a period

- exceeding six months from the date they became receivable - 49,767
- others - 20,22.480
Total - 20,72,247

1.Cash and CSh eq uile

Cash ad cash equivalents

Balances with scheduled banks :

Amount in Rupees

In Current accounts 1,66,078 3,88,227
Cash on hand - 27
Total 1,66,078 3.88,254




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

15.Revenue from operations

Amount in Rupees
Fp g s

Sale of Services:
Income from warehousing - 18,00,000
Total - 18,00,000

16.0ther income

Amount in Rupees

Interest income 1,269 2,79,953
Miscellaneous income 1,04,488 7,92,659
Total 1,05,757 10,72,612

17.Cost of operations

IRATLICU AL

Amount in Rupees

18.Employee benefits

2,31,81,387 |

Direct Costs - 5.05,620
Total = 5,035,620
Amount in Rupees

1,47,64,751

Salaries, bonus and other allowances

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 8,43,799 4,34,828

Staff welfare expenses 5,82,439 2,88,524
Total 2,46,07,625 1,54,88,103 |

19.Finance costs

a5

Interest on borroings (Refer Note No 29)

68,85,70,404

Amount in Rupees

54,39,72,042

20.0ther expenses

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 53,20,252 26,31,512

Other borrowing cost 7,45,288 6,61,556
Total 69,46.35,944 4,72.65,

Amount in Rupees

Power & Fuel 17,747 11,52,179
Rent 3,00,000 3,00,000
Repairs and Maintenance - Building 40,44,928 2,67,759
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 6.,29,027 1,35,617
Insurance 10,64,456 5.83,493
Rates & taxes 69,380 3,48,052
Legal and professional charges 23,77,278 54,63,209
Communication expenses 8,99,571 5,82,245
Travelling and conveyance expenses 7,78,210 12,39,104
Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 15,075 8,747
Printing and stationery 13,377 18,296
Auditor's remuneration
- Audit fees 5,02,500 5,00,000
Miscellaneous expenses. 18,490 6,18,515
Total 1,07,30,039 1,12,17,216




Arshiva Ind ial & Distr ion Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2016

21.Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

(a) Claims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 1,553 11,39,52,266
{b) Right to recompense by Secured Lenders - 44,10,00,000
Total

22.Capital Commitments

RATL IR RS

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 82,88,800

Total £2.88.800 N

23.DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

(a) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -
(b) Interest due on above e -
{c) Payments made beyond the appointed day during the year - -
(d) Interest paid - -
(e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
(f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
(g) Amount of further interest r ¢ due and payable in g years - -

Note : Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Company
and relied upon by the Auditors.

24. The disclosures as required as per the revised AS 15 are as follows:

a ~ Brief descriptions of the plans
The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund and Employees State Insurance where the Company has no further obligation beyond making the
contributions. The Company's defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees of the Company are also entitted to leave encashment as per the Company's policy.

b - Defined Benefit Plans

1 - Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.55% 7.80% 7.55% 7.80%
Rate of Return on plan assets 7.55% 9.00% - -
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
II - Change in Defined benefi g
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 9,12,186 8,17,895 5,53,142 5,92,933
Service Cost 1,72,586 1,91,226 1,58,082 1,87,229
Interest Cost 71,150 71,802 ,778 55,083
Benefits Paid - (90,000) (1 901) -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 2,18,150 (78,737) 2,35,085 (2,82,103)
Liability at the End of the Year 13,74,072 9,12,186 7,93,186 5,53,142
I1I - Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair Value of Planned assets at the ing of the year 7,35,549 6,87,917 - -
Expected Return on plan assets 66,199 55,934 - -
Paid - (90,000) - -
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (4,781) 81,698 - -
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 7,96,967 7,35,549 - -
1V. Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Asset 66,199 55,934 - -
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets (4,781) 81,698 - -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 61,418 1,37,632 - -
V. Amount R ized in the Bal Sheet
Liability at the end of the period 13,74,072 9,12,186 2,94,228 2,38,613
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year (7,96,967) (7,35,549) - -
Difference 5,77,105 1,76,637 2,94,228 2,38,613
Non Current Liability at the end of the year 4,98,958 3,14,529
Liability recognized in balance sheet . 5,77,105 1,76,637 7,93,186 5,53,142

V1. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets

Insured Managed Fund 100% 100% - -
VII. Exp Recognised in the of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 1,72,586 1,91,226 1,58,082 1,87,229
Interest Cost 71,150 71,802 35,778 55,083
Expected return of Plan Assets {66,199) (55,934) - -
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized 2,22,931 (1,60,435) 2,35,085 (2,82,103)

Plan Service Cost - - - N
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 4,00,468 46,659 (39,791)




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

VIIL, Bal Sheet iliation

Opening Net Liability 1,76,637 1,29,978 5,53,142 5,92,933
Expense as above 4,00,468 46,659 4,28,945 (39,791)
Employers Contribution - - (1,88,901) -
Closing Net Liability 5,77,105 1,76,637 7,93,186 5,53,142
IX. Expected Employers contribution In the next year

As per Actuarial Valuation report 5,19,287 3,98,490 - -

Note:
“Contribution to provident and gratuity fund” is recognized as an expense in Note no. 18 in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

25. Disclosure pursuant to A

dard 17 - S

infor

The Company is primarily engaged in the warehousing and handling business. In the opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by same set of risk and
returns and hence the same has been considered as representing the single primary segment. The Company provides services within India and it doesn’t have any
operation in economic environments with different risk and returns. Hence it is considered that the Company is operating in single geographical segment.

26.Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

(i) Related Party Disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 are as given below:

1) Arshiya Limited

Holding Company

2) Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
3) Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

4) Mr. Ajay S Mittal - Director
5) Mrs. Archana A Mittal

6) Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

- Director

7) Mr. Ranjit Ray ~ Director

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

8) Mr. Ananya Mittal - V.P. Strategy

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Note:

The related party relationship has been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relied upon by the auditors.

(i) The nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties were as follows:

Loans Taken

Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,36,01,654 2,52,47,938 1,95,95,695 - - -
Loans Taken during the year 1,09,91,467 1,83,53,716 2,83,41,975 2,12,12,735 - -
Loans Repaid during the year (7,00,958) - (21,75,793) (16,17,040) - -
Issue of Equity Shares including - - - - - -
Securities Premium

Balance as at the end of the year 5,38,92,163 4,36,01,654 4,57,61,877 1,95,95,695 - -
Remuneration Paid - - - - 24,77,628 -
Balance as at the end of the year

Corporate Guarantee 4,73,38,00,000 4,73,38,00,000 - - - -

27.Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

(91,25,57,434)]  (73,74,44,767)
ia 1,49.92,505 |

10 10

(60.87) (49.19)]




28. Preparation of financial statements on "Going Concern" basis

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis in view of the Revival plans referred to in
Note. 32.

29. Borrowings:-

i n ign A Reconstructi :

(a) During the financial year 2013-2014, Secured Lenders (Banks) had approved the restructuring package under "Corporate Debt
Restructuring Package” (CDR).The Company has not been able to generate sufficient cash flows to service the loan repayments/interest
payments which resulted into Company’s borrowings becoming “Non-Performing Assets” (NPAs) with the Banks since then. Such
defaults entitle the CDR lenders to revoke the CDR Package approved by them and hence the CDR Lenders decided to exit the CDR.

(b) Further to the above, CDR-EG issued a letter dated 31st July, 2015 approving the exit from CDR on account of failure of the
restructuring package. Upon exit, lenders are entitled to exercise rights and remedies available under the original loan documents. In
the absence of any communication from these lenders, the Company has not provided for additional interest from CDR Cut off date till
31st March 2016 estimated at Rs.67,94,65,302/- which arises on account of difference between interest rate as approved under CDR
package and interest rate decided as per original sanction terms and penal interest on overdue amount of interest and installment. Had
the Company provided for additional Interest as stated above, on such loans, the loss before tax for the year ended 31st March, 2016
would have been higher by Rs 67,94,65,302/-. Upon reconciliation and finalization of the estimated entitlements of these lenders, the
Company will recognize the liability in its books during the year in which finality is reached.

ii ns Assign: A ion Company (ARC):

a) Some of the Secured CDR Lenders had assigned their outstanding dues to an ARC, aggregating to Rs.24,91,47,907/- (Including
Interest of Rs.5,55,48,452/-) on the same terms and conditions as per the original loan documents..

b) Pending finalization of the terms of restructuring with ARC, the Company has not provided for interest aggregating to
Rs.3,50,00,300/- on loans assigned to the ARC from the respective dates of their assignment. :

c) Consequent to CDR exit, the Company has not provided for additional estimated interest (from CDR cut of date till 31st March 2016)
aggregating to Rs 3,43,52,114/-.
Had the Company provided for interest on such assigned loans, the loss for the year would have been higher by Rs.6,93,52,414/-.

d) On finalization of the terms of restructuring with ARC, the Company will record the effect of the revised terms as to repayment of
principal and interest (including penal interest if any) as referred to in 29 (ii) (b) and 29 (iii) (c) above in the period in which it is
completed.

30.Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and its applicability for accounting periods commencing on or after
1st April, 2014, the Company has re-worked depreciation with reference to the useful lives of Fixed Assets prescribed by PART 'C’ of
Schedule 11 to the Act. Where the remaining useful life of an asset is nil, the carrying amount of the asset after retaining the residual
value, as at 1st April, 2014 has been adjusted to the balance of Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases the carrying values have
been depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the assets and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Since then, as per the amendment dated 20th August, 2014, the useful life specified in Part C- of Schedule II has been defined to mean
that if the cost of a part of asset is significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of
the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part shall be determined separately and depreciated accordingly.

In the opinion of the Management, the Company’s assets are such that there are no significant parts thereof whose life would be
different than the useful life of the whole asset (Component accounting being a technical matter, the opinion of the Management is
relied upon by the Auditors). Consequently, the Company has continued to provide depreciation in respect of all its assets on the basis
as was followed in the financial year 2014-15, i.e. based on useful lives of the respective assets.

31.Invoking of Corporate Guarantee of Promoters and received notice of Possession in respect of properties mortgaged

Punjab National Bank (Bank), on behalf of certain Consortium Banks, has initiated debt recovery action under Section 13(2) of
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI) (Act) vide notice dated
19th October, 2015 aggregating to Rs 586,57,51,992/-.The bank has invoked Corporate Guarantee issued by Promoter Company,
Arshiya Limited and Personal guarantees of Promoter Directors, i.e., Mr. Ajay S. Mittal and Mrs. Archana A. Mittal. Further on 19th
January, 2016, the Company has received a notice of possession from the authorized officer of the bank under the power conferred on
the bank u/s 13(4) of there said Act read with Rule 8(i) of Rules.

32.Revival Plan

The Central Board of Excise and Customs, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance, Government of India under Section 7 (1)
(aa),and the Office of the Commissioner of Customs, Noida Customs Commissionerate under Section 8(a) and (b) of Custom Act, 1962
has approved for setting up Iniand Container Depot (ICD) at the Company's premises at Village Ibrahimpur, Junaidpur, urf Maujpur,
Tehsil - Khurja, District - Bulandshahr (Uttar Pardesh). Further, Management expects that the ICD, which will attract large number of
EXIM containers and has identified additional revenue streams such as Container Handling Services at origin/ destination points and
Terminal Access Charges, Terminal Handling Charges, for services offered at Khurja facility/ Terminal.




33.Details of Exceptional items (net) are as under:

Amount il
1) Fixed Assets Written off 1,74,64,823 82,07,055
2) Fees for Restructuring 30,00,000 -
3) Irrecoverable Advances written off 16.41,171 3,99,124
. [4) Sundry balances written back (net) (17,17,231) (63,83,083)]
Total 2,03,88,763 22,23,096

34.The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards Inter Company
advances/loans/guarantees granted/received are not applicable, as the same are provided/received in the normal course of business.

35.0utstanding balances in respect of Loans and Advances, Trade Payables and Other liabilities other than due from/to Holding/Fellow
Subsidiaries are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any on reconciliation of accounts. Since the extent to which these balances
are subject to confirmation is not ascertainable, the resultant impact of the same on the accounts cannot be ascertained.

36.Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/ cases / other legal proceedings for recovery of the amounts due to
them which are at different stages before the respective judicial forums / authorities. Claims by the said lenders and creditors have
been contested by the Company in those proceedings and not acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this juncture to estimate the
financial implications of such claims.

37. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting for Taxes on Income:

In view of loss for the year calculated as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”), no provision for taxation has been
made.

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act,
1961. However, since the availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible to
be ascertained with virtual certainty, Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognized as a measure of abundant caution.

38. Key Managerial Person

As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 the Company is required to appoint Managing Director or
Whole Time Director or Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary. However, the Company has not
complied with the said requirements and is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for these roles.

39. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to those of current year presentation.
Signature to Notes forming part of Financial Statements
For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Firm Registration Number 107556W
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Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 032489 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May,2016




M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members of
ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Northern FTWZ
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the.financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

YUSUF BUILDING, 2nvp FLOOR, 43, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI - 400 001.
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 3850 - 2202 0187 - FAX: 01-22-2287 4524 - E-MAIL: maparikh@eth.net



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion:
We draw attention to the following in respect of:

1. non-provision of interest aggregating to Rs.25,85,78,370/- on loans other than assigned to
Asset Reconstruction Company as referred to in Note no. 33(a)

2. non-provision of interest aggregating to Rs. 26,38,85,576/- on loans assigned to Asset
Reconstruction Company as referred to in Note no. 33(b)

The Companies records indicated that the management had not provided for interest as stated
in item nos 1 and 2 above. Had the management done so, an aggregate amount of Rs.
52,24,63,946/- would have been required to be provided. Accordingly, finance cost, loss for the
year and other current liabilities would have been higher and share holder’s funds would have
been lower by Rs.52,24,63,946/-.

3. non-compliance with the provisions of sub section (1) of Section 203 of the Act, relating to
appointment of whole time Company Secretary as referred to in Note no. 43.

Qualified Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date;
and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.




Emphasis of Matter

1. The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected by:
(a) Receipt of Notice of Possession in respect of properties mortgaged (Refer Note no. 37).
(b) Dues to banks and others being recalled by respective lenders aggregating to

Rs.3,17,46,12,244 /-(Refer Note no 11).
(c) Creditors for capital expenditure Rs. 38,37,14,757/- (Refer Note no 11).

(d) Unpaid employee’s dues Rs. 40,21,399/-(Refer Note no 11).
(e) Unpaid statutory dues Rs. 54,12,255/-(Refer Note no 11).

2. Further to above, we draw attention to Note No. 40 relating to Inter-Company loans/
guarantees granted/received.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis as
referred to in Note no. 32 of the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we

give in the Annexure “A” a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure “B”; and




(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer to Note Nos. 28 (a) and 42;

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses; and

iii. = There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

oz

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No. 032489
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure - A t.o the Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement of even date

(i) In respect of its Fixed Assets:

(@)

(b)

(©

(1)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us,
discrepancies noticed on such verification have been accounted for.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of freehold
lands are held in the name of the company.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase
inventory and hence Clause 3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to a party covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. According to
the terms of arrangement the loan are receivable after one year but within five
years, hence the question of repayment during the year does not arise. There are
no overdue amounts exceeding Rs. One lakh as of year-end with respect to such
loans granted.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act,
with respect to the loans, investment and guarantees made. (Refer Note no. 40)

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148 (1) of the Act
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the
Central Government vide notification dated 1 April 2014 and hence Clause 3 (vi)
of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues
except, Tax Deducted at Source and Works Contract Tax of Rs.46,49,191/- and
Rs.13,774/- respectively which is outstanding as of the year-end for a period of more
than six months from their due dates of payment.




(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amounts payable in respect to income tax, or sales tax or service tax or duty of
customs or duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any disputes.

(vii) The Company has not issued any debentures. Based on our audit procedures and

according to the information and explanations given by the management, during the year,
the Company, has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and a Financial Institution,
the defaults whereof are stated hereunder:

Default on account of non-payment of principal of Term Loans from/Short Term Loan
“Banks” as stated below:

G

R Gl
FY 2012-13 4,02,39,829 2,03,12,741 1,71,39,224 -
FY 2013-14 9,37,04,344 4,73,18,247 3,99,30,960 -
FY 2014-15 11,16,80,279 5,63,95,625 4,75,91,185 3,07,05,157
Jun-15 3,01,82,998 1,52,41,626 1,28,62,116 -
July-15 52,84,09,631 | 26,68,33,065 | 22,51,75,305 -
Total 80,42,17,081 | 40,61,01,304 | 34,26,98,790 3,07,05,157

Default on account of non-payment of principal of Term Loans from “Others” (Edelweiss

Asset Reconstruction Company - EARC Trust) as stated below:

FY 2012-13 1,42,56,728 99,02,154 1,44,52,244
FY 2013-14 4,00,94,087 2,88,15,076 4,41,37,286
FY 2014-15 4,77,85,606 3,43,42,866 5,26,04,439
Jun-15 1,29,14,661 92,81,593 1,42,17,010
Jul-15 22,60,95,191 16,24,91,545 -
Sep-15 - - 1,42,17,010
Dec-15 - - 1,42,17,010
Mar-16 - - 1,42,17,010
Total 34,11,46,273 24,48,33,234 16,80,62,009

Default on account of non-payment of interest on Loans from “Banks” as stated below:

i

ey

i vm

FY 2013-14 13,64,41,977 7,08,93,142 5,84,26,916 -
FY 2014-15 11,95,20,801 5,83,70,654 4,17,30,638 55,21,828
Apr-15 1,04,56,773 52,80,300 43,67,707 4,15,442
May-15 1,09,11,905 55,10,126 45,57,812 4,34,230




Jun-15 1,06,67,532 53,86,727 44,55,739 4,25,219
July-15 1,11,31,838 56,21,184 46,49,676 4,44,449
Aug-15 1,12,45,291 56,78,474 46,97,065 4,49,734
Sep-15 1,09,93,452 55,561,305 45,91,874 4,40,401
Oct-15 1,14,71,943 57,92,926 47,91,735 4,60,318
Nov-15 1,12,15,029 56,63,193 46,84,424 4,50,766
Dec-15 1,17,03,164 59,09,684 48,88,314 4,71,151
Jan-16 1,18,22,440 59,69,914 49,38,135 4,76,753
Feb-16 1,11,72,420 56,41,677 46,66,627 4,51,298
Mar-16 1,20,56,799 60,88,257 50,36,025 487,787

Total 39,08,11,364 | 19,73,57,563 15,64,82,687 1,09,29,376

Default on account of non-payment of interest on Term Loan from “Others” (Edelweiss

Asset Reconstruction Company - EARC Trust) as stated below:

FY 2013-14 5,84,00,315 4,36,50,933 6,42,55,241
FY 2014-15 4,98,94,252 3,46,17,154 5,61,83,369
Apr-15 44,62,940 32,14,653 -
May-15 46,57,190 33,54,571 -
Jun-15 45,52,892 32,79,445 -
July-15 47,551,057 34,22,183 -
Aug-15 47,99,479 34,57,063 -
Sep-15 46,91,994 33,79,641 -
Oct-15 48,96,994 - -
Nov-15 47,86,564 - -
Dec-15 49,94,899 - -
Total 15,08,87,796 9,83,75,643 12,04,38,610

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the balance sheet and other records, during the year the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer and not
received any term loan and hence clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not
paid/ provided for managerial remuneration and hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company and hence clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.




(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards (Refer Note no. 25).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For M.A.Parikhé& Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's

/MEAT

MUKUL M. PATEL

Partner

Registration No. 107556W)
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Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors” Report

Rei:ort on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of theCompanies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Northern
FTWZ Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 315t March 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556 W

/MV\W

Mukul M. Patel
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016
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Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Amount in Rupees

1. Equity And Liabilities
1. Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital 4 9,55,06,260 9,55,06,260
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 3,18,23,92,114 3,80,08,01,099
3,27,78,98,374 3,89,63,07,359
2. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 6 70,19,75,975 2,86,55,67,090
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities 7 6,82,500 9,92,500
(¢) Long Term Provisions 8 6,97,029 5,72,333
70,33,55,504 2,86,71,31,923
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 9 - 13,01,85,997
(b) Trade Payables 10 1,21,80,310 '91,21,943
(¢) Other Current Liabilities 11 3,92,73,85,965 1,28,30,22,224
(d) Short Term Provisions 8 51,733 50,677
3,93,96,18,008 1,42,23,80,841
Total 7,92,08,71,886 8!18!58!20!123
I1. Assets
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets 12 7,55,23,19,879 6,69,16,03,243
(ii) Intangible Assets 2,03,92,706 4,08,97,767
(iii) Capital Work-In-Progress : - 1,11,66,36,527
7.57,27,12,585 7,84,91,37,537
(b) Non Current Investments 13 11,49,08,880 11,49,08,880
(c) Long-Term Loans and Advances 14 22,62,900 1,82,84,105
(d) Other Non-Current Asset 16 41,72,979 38,67,767
7,69,40,57,344 7,98,61,98,289
2, Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 15 17,28,82,804 14,69,75,365
(b) Cash and Bank Balances 16 1,65,64,554 12,60,128
(c) Short Term Loans and Advances 14 3,73,67,184 5,13,86,341
22,68,14,542 19,96,21,834
Total 7,92,08,71,886 %
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial 1-44
statements
As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co. . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited

Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 032489 DIN : 00613576 DIN : 00226355

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Amount in Rupees
I. Revenue:
Revenue From Operations 17 3,04,22,161 2,30,10,614
Other Income 18 21,96,996 7,67,005
Total Revenue 3,26,19,157 2,37,77,619
II. Expenses
Cost of Operations 19 12,37,034 18,55,217
Employee Benefits 20 1,84,86,159 1,56,55,352
Finance Costs 21 33,99,48,754 40,22,43,299
Depreciation and Amortisation 12 14,79,54,443 16,05,18,138
Other Expenses 22 3,88,15,218 3,71,35,436
Total Expenses 54,64,41,608 61,74,07,442
111. Loss Before Exceptional items and Tax (51,38,22,451) (59,36,29,823)
IV Exceptional items (net) ' 39 10,11,20,358 (68,09,233)
V Loss for the year (61,49,42,809) (58,68,20,590
Earnings per equity share 26
Basic and Diluted (64.39) (61.44)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-44

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

(T

Wiy

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

N (yw,\.:r—s?\ (s BETSS

Mukul Patel o - Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner ‘ \ Director Director
Membership Number: 032489 DIN : 00613576 DIN : 00226355

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Loss for the year (61,49,42,809)| (58,68,20,590)
Adjustments for :
Interest Income (3,91,009) (4,06,117)
Sundry Balances Written Back (96,31,518) (3,22,84,209)
Fixed Assets Written Off 9,22,64,168 1,40,74,976
Fees for Restructuring 40,00,000 -
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 1,44,87,708 -
Depreciation 14,79,54,443 16,05,18,138
Interest Expenses 33,99,48,754 40,22,43,299
Irrecoverable Advances Written Off - 1,14,00,000
Operating (Loss) / Profit Before Working Capital Changes (2,63,10,263) (3,12,74,503)
Working Capital Changes:

(Increase)/decrease in Trade and Others Receivable 41,32,923 (2,11,71,043)
Increase/(decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (1,27,57,671) 38,14,01,721
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (3,49,35,011) 32,89,56,175
Taxes Refund / (paid) 7,97,480 (1,48,251)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A) (3,41,37,531) 32,88,07,924
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Sale of Fixed Assets 1,19,97,900 4,26,777
Investments in Fixed Deposit (3,05,212) (2,97,915)
Interest Received 3,39,125 4,06,117
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 1,20,31,814 5,34,979
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing (Net) 17,93,06,138 6,18,09,610
Repayment from Short Term Borrowing (Net) (9,94,80,840) -
Interest Expenses (4,24,15,155) (40,22,43,299)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (c) 3,74,10,143 (34,04,33,689)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,53,04,426 (1,10,90,786)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,60,128 1,23,50,914
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,65,64,554 12,60,128

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership Number: 032489

@

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

%—\\M NS

Ajay S Mittal

Director

DIN : 00613576

Navnit Choudhary

Director
DIN : 00226355




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

1

(i

(i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(iii)

General Information

The Company was incorporated on 16th June, 2008 with the object of setting up & carry on activities
pertaining to Free Trade & Warehousing Zone.

The Company has developed a Free Trade & Warehousing Zone at Khurja, District Bulandshahar in the
state of Uttar Pradesh and the Government of India vide its Notification No. S. O. 2793(E) dated 16th
November, 2010 has notified the aforesaid area as a Free Trade & Warehousing Zone under the
provisions of The Special Economic Zone Act, 2005.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP”")
and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, as prescribed under the Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act (to the extent notified).

These financial statements are prepared by applying the “Going Concern” assumption based on future
business plans.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the year. The difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialised.'

Fixed Assets and capital work in progress

Tangible Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit availed, if any)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except land which is carried at its revalued
amount being the estimated market value on the date of revaluation. All costs including borrowing cost
incurred during pre-operational period till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The capitalized cost of software
includes license fees, cost of implementation and system integration services. These costs are
capitalized as intangible assets in the year in which related software is implemented.

Capital work-in-progress

The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost comprising direct
costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised till the date of commencement of commercial operations as part of cost of such assets. All
other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

(iv) Depreciation and Amortization

(a) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates and manner in

accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(b) Amortisation of intangible assets other than (c) below, is provided on a straight-line basis over a period
of three to six years from the date of its implementation based on management’s estimate of useful life
over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

(c) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including expenditure on
implementation is amortised over a period of ten years based on management’s estimate of useful life
over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

(v) Leases

(a) Finance lease
Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability is recognized at
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease. Initial costs directly attributable to lease are recognized with the asset under
lease.

(b) Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as expenses on
accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

(vi) Investments

Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition are classified as long
term and are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of long term investments is
made to recognise a decline, other than temporary.

(vii) Revenue Recognition

(a) Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on accrual basis
as per agreed terms. .

(b) Revenue from value added services and other activities is recognized based on completion of agreed
contracted services. .

(c) Export incentive in the nature of “Duty Entitlement Pass Book” (DEPB) has been recognised on the basis
of credits afforded in the pass book/amount received.

(d) Interest and other income is accounted on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain
in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

(viii) Employee benefits

Employee benefits include schemes such as provident fund, gratuity and leave encashment entitlements.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are charged to the Statement of

Profit and Loss, as and when accrued.

Defined Benefit Plan
The liability for Leave encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis as per the Accounting
Standard -15 “Employee Benefits” (AS 15) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(ix) Foreign Currency Transactions

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the date of
the transaction. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange
rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(x) Accounting for Taxes on Income
(a) Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(b) Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.
Deferred Tax assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax liability, is recognized as an asset only when, based on
convincing evidence, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the
Company and the assets can be measured reliably.

(c

~

(xi) Impairment

At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made for impairment
loss on fixed assets by considering the indications that an impairment loss may have occurred in
accordance with Accounting Standard - 28 “Impairment of Assets” (AS-28) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(xii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(a) A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation and in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted and is determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the year-end date.

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company.

(c) Contingent Assets are not recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

(xiii) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and diluted equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the
results would be anti-dilutive.

(xiv) Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash
Flow Statements which presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company.

(xv) Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles followed by the Company. g, .




Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Authorised
2,50,00,000 (2,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid
95,50,626 (95,50,626) equity shares of Rs 10/- each 9,55,06,260 9,55,06,260

Total 9,55.06,260 ____9.55,06,260

(a) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares
The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of eqyity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year

k e ol i : - i
Balance as at the beginning of the year 95,50,626 9,55,06,260 95,50,626 9,55,06,260
Balance as at the end of the year 95,50,626 | 9,55,06,260 95,50,626 9,55,06,260 |

"~ 95,50,626 9,55,06,260 95,50,626 9,55,06,260

Total 95,50,626 9,55,06,260 95,50,626 9,55,06,260

(d) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
- z e

cHj#20

Arshiya Limited * 95,50,626 100.00 95,50,626 100.00

Total 95,50,626 100.00 95,50,626 100.00

* Notes :-

(i) Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section
89 of the Companies Act, 2013. .

(i) As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from the shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

ds

Securities Premium Reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,04,70,51,500 3,04,70,51,500
Revaluation Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,02,37,38,932 2,02,37,38,932
Less: Adjustment on Account of land sold during the year 34,66,176 -
Balance at the end of the vear 2,02,02,72,756 2,02,37,38,932
Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year (1,26,99,89,333) (68,25,18,339)
Less: Adjustment for Depreciation - (6,50,404)
Loss for the year (61,49,42,809) (58,68,20,590)
Balance as at the end of the year (1,88,49,32,142)( (1,26,99,89,333)

Total 3,18,23,92,114 3,80,08,01,099




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(a)

(b)

Secured Loans*: (Refer Note no. 33)

Term Loans (Refer Note (a) below)

From Banks - 2,12,30,92,737 1,55,30,17,175 2,14,45,381

From Others 14,51,72,638 37,49,77,154 81,51,13,107 37,87,648
14,51,72,638 2,49,80,69,891 2,36.81,30,282 2,52,33,029

Unsecured Loans: (Refer Note (b) below)

From Holding Company 40,80,57,442 33,38,19,845 - -

From Fellow Subsidiary 14,87,45,895 3,36,77,354 - -
55,68,03,337 36,74,97,199 - -

Less: Amount disclosed under the head "other (2,36,81,30,282) (2,52,33,029)

current liabilities™ (Refer Note No. 11)*

Total 70,19,75,975 2,86,55,67,090 - -

* During the year Secured CDR Lenders has exited from CDR package and as per letter dated 31st July, 2015 issued by CDR-EG
approving the exit from CDR on account of failure of the restructuring package (Refer Note No 33). Accordingly on exit from CDR, the
company will be governed by original loan agreement instead of CDR agreement and hence Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) created
during the tenure of CDR is transferred to Interest Accrued and due (Refer Note No 11).

The Term loans are secured as under ;-

(i) Securities provided

- First Pari Passu charge on fixed assets of the Company - both present and future

- First Pari Passu charge/assignment/security interest on the Company's rights under the project documents, contracts (including
guarantees) and all licenses, permits, approvals, consents and insurance policies.

- Assignment of contractor guarantees, liquidated damages, letter of credit, guarantee or performance under any project agreement or
contract in favour of the Company.

- Second charge on current assets.

- Personal guarantee of two Directors of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company.

- Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company.

- Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

(i) Rate of Interest is 12% p.a. upto 31.03.2017 and 13% p.a thereafter.

(iii) Repayment Schedule of Secured Loans is as follows :-

2012-2013 7.76.91,794 3.86,11,126 11,63,02,920
2013-2014 18,09,53,551 11,30,46,449 29,40,00,000
2014-2015 21,56,67,089 13,47,32,911 35,04,00,000
2015-2016 23,31,46,956 14,56,53.044 37.88,00,000
2016-2017 25,03,80,628 15,64,19,372 40,68,00,000
2017-2018 26,78,60,495 16,73,39,505 43,52,00,000
2018-2019 21,59,13,285 13,48,86,715 35.,08,00,000
2019-2020 11,14,03,377 6,95,96,623 18,10,00,000

Total 1,55,30,17,175 96,02,85,745 2,51,33,02,920

(iv) Details of continuing default in repayment of Principal amount of Term Loan as on 31st March, 2016 is as follows:-

2012-2013 7,76 3,86,11,126

2013-2014 18,09 11,30,46,449 29,40,00,000

2014-2015 21,56,67,089 13,47,32,911 35,04,00,000
Jun-15 5.82,86,739 3,64,13,261 9,47,00,000
Jul-15 1,02,04,18,002 38,85,86,739 1,40,90,04,741
Sep-15 - 1,42,17,010 1,42,17,010
Dec-15 - 1,42,17,010 1,42,17,010
Mar-16 - 1,42,17,010 1,42,17,010
Total 1,55,30,17,175 75.40,41.516

Loan from Holding Company and a Fellow Subsidiary
Interest free loan repayable after 12 months but before 5 years.




Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

7 Other Long Term Liabilities Amount in Rupee.
) . T i As at Asiat
Particulars 31st March 2016 | 31st-March 2015
Security Deposits 6,82,500 9,92,500
Total 6,82,500 9,92,500
8 Provisions Amount in Rupees
. Non Current : Current
Particulars at -

.. A At Asat

Emplovee benefits ( Refer Note No 23)

Gratuity 3,13,283 - -
|Leave Encashment 2,5%,050 51,733 50,677
Total 5.72,333 51,7 50,677

9 Short Term Borrowings — Amount in Rupees
S , o Particulars: e R Asat Asat

|.31st March'2016 | 31st March 2015

Secured:
Cash Credit From a bank (Refer Note No 33(b)) 3,07,05,157 3,10,00,000
Other - 9,91,85,997
3,07,05,157 13,01,85,997
Amount disclosed under the head "other current liabilities” (Refer Note No. 11) (3,07,05,157) -
Total - 13,01,85,997

(a) Cash credit :

(i) Secured by:
- First Pari Passu charge on entire current assets of the Company - both present and future.

- Second Pari Passu charge on the assets charged for Term Loan /FITL on first pari passu charge to lender.
- Personal guarantee of two Directors of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company.

- Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company.

- Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

(ii) Rate of Interest on Cash Credit Loan : Base Rate + 3 % p.a.

(it ! iculars of defaults of Principal amount as of 31.03.2016 are as under:

Partictlars
Cash Credit 3,07,05,157

Trade Payables (Rfer Note No. 29 and 42)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises*

1,21,80,310 91,21,943

Total 1,21,80,310 91,21,943

* Includes Rs. 81,43,851/- which are outstanding for more than 1 year. The Company is of the view that these dues will be paid during
2016-17 and hence presented as "Current".




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

11

Term Loan

Loans from Banks *

Loans from Others **
Cash Credit from Bank ***

Interest accrued and due on
Term Loans from Banks *
Term Loans from Others **
Cash Credit from Bank **x*
Short Term loan

Other Liabilities

Project Creditors (Refer Note No. 29)
Provision for Expenses

Employees' Dues @

Statutory Liabilities

Tax Deducted at Source

Provident Fund

Labor Welfare fund

Works Contract Tax

Interest payable on delayed payment of Statutory dues

Current maturities of Long-term Secured Loans: (Refer Note No. 33)

Total

1,55,30,17,175 2,14,45,381
81,51,13,107 37.87.648
3,07,05,157 -
2,39,88,35,439 2,52,33,029
74,46,51,614 67.19.46,784
36.97.01,767 12,04,38.328
1.09,29,376 51,03,888
- 3,14,63,242
1,12,52,82,757 82,89,52,242
38,37,14,757 40,27,26,479
28,36,734 20,54,000
69,72,834 61,60,053
39,35,24,325 41,09,40,532
53,30,385 1,43,60,281
68,096 64,826
- 48
13,774 13,774
43,31,189 34,57,492
97.43,444 1,78,96,421
3,92,73,85,965 1,28,30,22,224

* Includes aggregating Rs.155,30,17,175 recalled by banks and interest accrued and due on the said loans is Rs.74,46,51,614.

** Includes aggregating Rs.58,60,45,483 recalled by others and intere

st accrued and sue on the said loans is Rs. 24,92,63,439.

*** Includes aggregating Rs.3,07,05,157 Cash Credit facilit

y recalled by banks and interest accrued on the said loans is Rs 1,09,29,376.

@ Includes Rs 40,21,399/- which are outstandin

g for more than 1 year. The Company is of the view that these dues will be paid during

2016-17 and hence presented as "Current”.

(i) Detail of unpaid interest on term loan from Bank and others as on 31-03-2016 is as follows :-
Amount in Rup

26,57,62,035

F.Y. 2013-14 16,63,06,489 43,20,68,524
F.Y. 2014-15 21,96,22,094 14,06,94,776 36,03,16,870
Apr-15 2,01,04,780 76,77,593 2,77,82,373
May-15 2,09,79,843 80,11,761 2,89,91,604
Jun-15 2,05,09,998 78,32,337 2,83,42,335
Jul-15 2,14,02,698 81,73,241 2,95,75,939
Aug-15 2,16,20,830 82,56,541 2,98,77,371
Sep-15 2,11,36,630 80,71,635 2,92,08,265
Oct-15 2,20,56,604 48,96,214 2,69,52,818
Nov-15 2,15,62,646 47,86,563 2,63,49,209
Dec-15 2,25,01,161 49,94,617 2,74,95,778
Jan-16 2,27,30,489 - 2,27,30,489
Feb-16 2,14,80,724 - 2,14,80,724
Mar-16 2,31,81,082 - 2,31,81,082
Total 74,46,51,614 36,97,01,767 1,11,43,53,381

(i) Detail of unpaid interest on Cash Credit from Bank as on 31-03-2016 is as follows :-

Upto March 2015 55,21,828
Apr-15 4,15,442
May-15 4,34,230
Jun-15 4,25,219
Jul-15 4,44,449
Aug-15 4,49,734
Sep-15 4,40,401
Oct-15 4,60,318
Nov-15 4,50,766
Dec-15 4,71,151
Jan-16 4,76,753
Feb-16 4,51,298
Mar-16 4,87,787
Total 1.09.29,37
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Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Traded and Unquoted)
4,78,787 (4,78,787) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each, fully paid up of Arshiya Supply
Management Private Limited (Fellow Subsidiary)

Chain

11,49,08,880

11,49,08,880

Total

11,49,08,880 11,49,08,880

13.1 In the opinion of the Management, the erosion of net worth of the Investee Company is considered temporary in nature, in view of the
expected developments in relation to long term Business Strategies and in-built synergies of the Company. Hence, diminution in the value

of Investment is not considered necessary.

Amount in Rupees i

14 Loans and Advances
) . Non Current _.Current.
! at “

Particulars

2015

March'2016 |

R | 31st March 2016
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Deposits 22,62,900 1,82,84,105 - -
22,62,900 1,82,84,105 - -
Loan and Advances to Related Parties
Unsecured, considered good - - 2,51,660 18,60,412
- - 2,51,660 18,60,412
Other Loans and Advances
Prepaid expenses - - 1,05,437 5.80,989
Income Tax Pavments (Net) - N 7.91,397 92,33,294
Other Advances - - 7,13,067 21,79,897
Indirect Taxes Receivables (Refer Note No. 35) - - 3.55.05,623 3,75.31,749
- - R.71.15.824 4.95.75.979
Total 22,62,900 1,82,84,105 3,73,67,184 5,13,86,341
Amount in Rupees
Asat i . Asat -

ist'March 2015,

Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 2.51,660 8.50,912
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited - 10,09,500
Total 2,51,660 18,60,412
15 —
Particulars Asat Asat: -

31st March 2016 | 31st March 2015

(uyhsecui'éty:'l, éonsidered good)
Outstanding for a period *

Others

. |Exceeding Six Months from the date they were due for payment 14,21,27,574 13,67,72,582
3.07,55,230 1,02,02,783
Total 17,28.82,804 14 75,36

*Includes aggregating to Rs.17,23,84,330/- (P.Y. Rs.14,59,78,652/-) due from Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited, a

fellow subsidiary.

15.1 In the opinion of the Management, the Book Debts due from Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary, are
good for recovery in view of long term business plans and future strategies of the Company which shall eventually improve its ability to

pay its debts.

16 Cash and Bank Balances

s
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Schedule banks:
In current accounts

Cash on hand

1,65,64,554

12,60.082
46

Other Bank Balances
In Margin Money Deposit (Pledged against Bank 41,72,979

Guarantees)

38,67,767

1,65,64,554

12,60,128

41,72,979

38.67,767

Total 41,72,979

38,67,767

1,65,64,554

12,60,12



Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Income from warehousing and handling business

Total 4 161 2 1 4
18 Other Income
Particulars :
Interest u,O ,11/7'
Miscellaneous Income [includes exchange gain Rs 96,008/- (P.Y. Rs 19,254/-)] 18,05,987 3,60,888
Total 21,96,996 7,67,005
19 Cost of Operations Amount in Rupees

Direct Expenses

12,37,034

18,55,217

Total

12,37,034

18,55,217

20

Employee Benefit

Salary, Bonus & Other Allowances

Amoun

1,47,45,863

1,70,90,390
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds 3,85,256 2,81,474
Staff Welfare Expenses 10,10,513 6,28,015
Total 1,84,86,159 1,56,55,352
21 Finance Costs i
" Pparticulars

‘31st March, 20

Interest on Borrowingks (Refer Note No 33)”

33,87,45,670 39,89,77,311

Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 9,90,377 12,52,696
Interest - Others 2,12,707 20,13,292

Total 33,99.48,754 40,22,43,299
Power & Fuel 73,85,185 97,65,652
Rent 6,07,838 -
Repairs and Maintenance
- Building 32,99,032 11,02,425
- Others 12,69,462 1,00,616
Security expenses 98,06,791 90,83,617
Housekeeping expenses 46,78,615 46,32,812
Insurance 16,85,804 19,49,657
Rates & Taxes 10,547 2,09,555
Legal and Professional fees 40,38,376 45,74,847
Travelling and Conveyance expenses 26,70,922 20,56,831
Vehicle expenses 8,03,429 10,90,926
Communication expenses 2,32,010 2,68,586
Printing and Stationery 97,637 67,718
Bad Debts 2,10,240 98,980
Auditor"
-Audit fees 5,00,000 5,00,000
Miscellaneous expenses 15,19,330 16,33,214

Total 3,88,15,218 3,71,35,436




Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited
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23 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised - Employee Benefits)
The disclosures as reauired as per the revised AS 15 are as follows:

a - Brief description of the plan

The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund where the Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company's
defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees of the Company are also entitled to leave encashment as per the Company's policy.

b - Defined Benefit Plan

e B i _; S Y Y77 n'l r -

i Rk A iy
I - Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.55% 7.80% 7.55% 7.80%
Rate of Return on plan assets 7.55% 9.00% - -
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
II - Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 3,78,800 26,85,650 3,09,727 5,60,656
Service Cost 1,83,645 6.07,684 1,51,766 1,68,157
Interest Cost 29,546 2,49,497 17,946 52,085
Past Interest Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) - - - -
Liability Transferred in/(out) - - - -
Benefits Paid - - (1,59,300) -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (92,500) (31,64,031) 120 (4,71,171)
Liability at the End of the Year 4,99,491 3,78,800 3,20,259 3,09,727
III - Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair Value of Planned assets at the beginning of the year 65,517 56,306 - -
Expected Return on plan assets 5,897 4,899 - -
Contributions - - - -
Transfer from other company - - - -
Benefits Paid - - - -
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (426) 4,312 - -
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 70,988 65,517 - -
IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets:
Expected Return on Plan Asset 5,897 4,899 - =
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets (426) 4,312 - -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 5,471 9,211 - -
V. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the period 4,99,491 3,78,800 51,733 50,677
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 70,988 65,517 - -
Difference 4,28,503 3,13,283 51,733 50,677
Unrecognized past service cost - - - -
Non Current Liability at the end of the year - - 2,68,526 2,59,050
Liability recognized in balance sheet 4,28,503 3,13,283 3,20,259 3,09,727
VI. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair
value of plan assets
Insured Managed Fund 100% 100% - -
VIIL Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 1,83,645 6,07,684 1,51,766 1,68,157
Interest Cost 29,546 2,49,497 17,946 52,085
Expected return of Plan Assets (5,897) (4,899) - -
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (92,074) (31,68,343) 120 (4,71,171)
Plan Service Cost - - - -
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 1,15,220 (23,16,061) 1,69,832 (2,50,929)
VIIIL Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening Net Liability 3,13,283 26,29,344 3,09,727 5,60,656
Expense as above 1,15,220 (23,16,061) 1,69,832 (2,50,929)
Employers Contribution - - - -
Net Transfers-In from other companies - - - -
Net Transfers-Out from other companies - - - -
Employers Contribution - - (1,59,300) -
Closing Net Liability 4,28,503 3,13,283 3,20,259 3,09,727
IX. Expected Employers contribution in the next year
As per Actuarial Valuation report 52,907 1,000 - -

Notes: "Contribution to provident and gratuity fund” is recognised as an expense in Note no. 20 of the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2016
24 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Seament information

The Company is primarily engaged in the warehousing and handling business. In the opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by same set
of risk and returns and hence the same has been considered as representing the single primary segment. The Company provides services within India and it
doesn’t have any operation in economic environments with different risk and returns. Hence it is considered that the Company is operating in single
geographical segment.

25
(i

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 as given below:

Arshiya Limited

Holding Company

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Mr. Ajay S. Mittal - Director Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mrs. Archana Mittal - Director
Mr. Ranjit Ray - Director

Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

WNOO UL WN|-

Note:
The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relied upon by

(ii) The nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties were as follows:
Amount in Rupees

: ; M
Loans Taken
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,36,77,354 3,36,77,354 33,38,19,846 30,41,46,300
Loans Taken during the year 12,21,73,374 - 7,43,56,510 3,50,87,508
Loans Repaid during the year (71,04,833) - (1,18,913) (54,13,962)
Balance as at the end of the year 14,87,45,895 3,36,77,354 40,80,57,443 33,38,19,846
Loans Given
Balance as at the beginning of the year 18,60,412 - - -
Loans Given during the year 15,18,580 22,79,795 - -
Loans Repaid during the year (31,27,332) (4,19,383) e -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,51,660 18,60,412 - -
Investment in Equity Shares 11,49,08,880 11,49,08,880 - -
Account Receivable as at the beginning of the year 14,59,69,152 10,26,30,337 - -
Service Provided 2,42,70,975 2,04,51,630 - -
Amount Received / Credit Notes / TDS deducted (1,08,53,614) (1,71,30,442) - -
TDS reversed 1,29,97,817 4,00,17,627 - -
Account Receivable as at the end of the year 17,23,84,330 14,59,69,152 - -
Corporate Guarantees / Securities Given 1,85,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 - -
Corporate Guarantees / Securities Received 3,26,11,00,000 3,56,11,00,000

26 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share
The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

A

Loss for the year D o o ’ (61,45,42,809)]  (56.68.20,590)
Weighted average number of Shares (Number) 95,59,626 95,50,626
Nominal Value per share 10 10
Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted (64.39) (61.44)

27 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income:

In view of loss for the year as calculated as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”), no provision for taxation has been made.

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, since the
availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible to be ascertained with virtua) X inty, Deferred
Tax Assets have not been recognized as a measure of abundant caution.




Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2016

28 Contingent liability not provided for in respect of:

(a) Claims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt T 8,65,70,040 11,39,52,266

(b) Right to recompense by Secured Lenders - 44,10,00,000
(c) Guarantee given on behalf of a fellow subsidiary 1,85,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
utstandin: lance against such rantee is Rs 181,04.30 P. Y. R 04,55,555)
Total

29 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

: 5 STTHE;
& 3 - B S d S A d 4 i b i m i
(a) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -

(b) Interest due on above - -
(c) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year
(d) Interest paid - -
(e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
(f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
(g) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years - -

Note : Dues to Micro and Smali Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been Identifled on the basis of information collected by
the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

30 Details of foreign currency transactions/balances not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are as under:

Foreign currency transactions / balances of the Company are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise. The details of foreign currency transactions
/ balances of the Company are:

Accounts receivable o ~ USD_ | 569129 1465500  3,79.980.64 | 8,88,607.00

Accounts receivable EURO 1,427.11 1,998.00 1,05,177.71 1,37,107.00
Project Creditors usD - 36,851.00 - 22,72,231.00

31 Foreign Currency Transactions
Earnings in foreign currency:

Income from FTWZ operations I ] 57,31,127 27,42,874
Total ] 57,31,127 | 27,42,874 |




32

33
(a)

(b)

34

35

37

38

Preparation of financial statements on “Going Concern” basis

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis in view of the Revival plans refferd to
in Note No. 38

Borrowings:-

1) During the financial year 2013-2014, Secured Lenders (Banks) had approved the restructuring package under “Corporate
Debt Restructuring Package” (CDR).The Company has not been able to generate sufficient cash flows to service the loan
repayments/interest payments which resulted into Company’s borrowings becoming “Non-Performing Assets” (NPAs) with the
Banks since then. Such defaults entitle the CDR lenders to revoke the CDR Package approved by them and hence the CDR
Lenders decided to exit the CDR.

ii) Further to the above, CDR-EG issued a letter dated 31st July, 2015 approving the exit from CDR on account of failure of the
restructuring package. Upon exit, lenders are entitled to exercise rights and remedies avallable under the original loan
documents. In the absence of any communication from these lenders, the Company has not provided for additional interest
from CDR Cut off date till 31st March 2016 estimated at Rs.25,85,78,370/- which arises on account of difference between
interest rate as approved under CDR package and interest rate decided as per original sanctioned terms and penal interest on
overdue amount of interest and installment. Had the Company provided for additional Interest as stated above, on such loans,
the loss before tax for the year ended 31st March, 2016 would have been higher by Rs 25,85,78,370/-. Upon reconciliation and
finalization of the estimated entitlements of these lenders, the Company will recognize the liability in its books during the year
in which finality is reached.

L Assi i to A R ion.C (ARC):
1) Some of the Secured CDR Lenders had assigned their outstanding dues to an ARC, aggregating to Rs.132,99,87,513/-
(Including Interest of Rs.36,97,01,768/-) on the same terms and conditions as per the original loan documents.

if) Pending finalization of the terms of restructuring with ARC, the Company has not provided for Interest aggregating to
Rs.9,98,02,457/- on loans assigned to the ARC from the respective dates of their assignment.

iii) Consequent to CDR exit, the Company has not provided for additional estimated interest (from CDR cut of date till 31st
March 2016) aggregating to Rs 16,40,83,119/-.

Had the Company has provided for interest on such assigned loans, the loss before tax for the year would have been higher by
Rs 26,38,85,576/-.

iv) On finalization of the terms of restructuring with ARC, the Company will record the effect of the revised terms as to
repayment of principal and interest (including penal interest if any) as referred to in b (i) and b (lii) above In the period in
which it is completed.

Fixed A { and iation :

Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and its applicability for accounting periods commencing on
or after 1st April, 2014, the Company has re-worked depreciation with reference to the useful lives of Fixed Assets prescribed
by PART 'C’ of Schedule II to the Act. Where the remaining useful life of an asset is nil, the carrying amount of the asset after
retaining the residual value, as at 1st April, 2014 has been adjusted to the balance of Statement of Profit and Loss. In other
cases the carrying values have been depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the assets and recognized In the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Since then, as per the amendment dated 20th August, 2014, the useful life specified in Part C- of Schedule II has been defined
to mean that if the cost of a part of asset is significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from
the useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part shall be determined separately and depreciated
accordingly.

In the opinion of the Management, the Company’s assets are such that there are no significant parts thereof whose life would
be different than the useful life of the whole asset (Component accounting being a technical matter, the opinion of the
Management is relied upon by the Auditors). Consequently, the Company has continued to provide depreciation in respect of all
its assets on the basis as was followed in the financial year 2014-15, i.e. based on useful lives of the respective assets.

Indirect Taxes Recejvable

Refunds receivable in respect of VAT, Service Tax, Local Entry Tax and Service Tax for which appeals are pending with
respective Appellate Authorities. The Management is of the view that the refunds claimed as above aggregating to Rs
3,55,05,623 are considered good for recovery on account of refunds being received by other SEZ developers on similar
grounds.

The Company has given second charge on all its assets to Capital First Limited to secure the Term Loan of Rs 185 Crores
(Previous year Rs 100 Crores) granted to Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited, a fellow Subsidiary. The amount
outstanding of the said loan as on 31st March, 2016 is Rs 1,81,04,30,991/- (Previous Year Rs 66,04,55,555/-)

Invoking of Corporate Guarantee of Promoters and received notice of P in resp of properties
mortgaged

Punjab National Bank (Bank), on behalf of certain Consortium Banks, has initiated debt recovery action under Section 13(2) of
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI) (Act) vide
notice dated 14th October, 2015 aggregating to Rs 322,23,46,819/-. The bank has invoked Corporate Guarantee issued by
Promoter Company, Arshiya Limited and Personal guarantees of Promoter Directors, l.e., Mr. Ajay S. Mittal and Mrs. Archana
A. Mittal. Further on 19th January, 2016, the Company received a notice of possession from the authorized officer of the bank
under power conferred on the bank u/s 13(4) of ther said Act read with Rule 8(i) of Rules.

Revival Plans

The Central Board of Excise and Customs, -Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance, Government of India under Section 7
(1) (aa),and the Office of the Commissioner of Customs, Noida Customs Commissionerate under Section 8(a) and (b) of
Custom Act, 1962 has approved for the fellow subsidiary Company for setting up Inland Container Depot (ICD) at the
company’s premises at Village Ibrahimpur, Junaidpur, urf Maujpur, Tehsil - Khurja, District - Bulandshahr.

This will help the company to access EDI connectivity for movement of cargo to the FTWZ. Hence, the company will be able to
resolve long pending Issues of en-block movement of cargo/ goods.

The company has already built the required infrastructure/ facility for movement of cargo from ICD to FTWZ and vice-
versa.Further, the existing rail infrastructure in another feliow subsidiary, adjacent to the ICD will ease the movement of EXIM
containers and the FTWZ shall be an USP as it would create a pull for cargo requiring FTWZ specific services.




39 Details of Exceptional items (net) are as under:

RN : v 0 ’
1 Irrecoverable Advances Written Off 1,14,00,000
2 Fixed A: Written Off 9,22,64,168 1,40,74,976
3 Fees for Restructuring 40,00,000 -
4 |Loss on sale of Fixed assets 1,44,87,708 =
5 n Balan Written Back (Net) (96,31,518) (3,22,84,209)
Total 10,11,20,358 (68,09,233)

40 The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards inter Company
advances/loans/guarantees granted/received are not applicable, as the same are provided/received in the normal course of
business.

41 Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade Payables and Other liabilities other than due
from/to Holding/Fellow Subsidiaries are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any on reconciliation of accounts. Since
the extent to which these balances are subject to confirmation is not ascertainable, the resultant impact of the same on the
accounts cannot be ascertained.

42  Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/ cases / other legal proceedings for recovery of the amounts due
to them which are at different stages before the respective judicial forums / authorities. Claims by the said lenders and
creditors have been contested by the Company in those proceedings and not acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this
juncture to estimate the financial implications of such claims.

43  As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 the Company is required to appoint a Company
Secretary. However, the Company has not compiled with the said requirement and Is in the process of identifying a suitable
candidate for this role.

44  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to those of current year presentation.

Signature to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Firm Reqistration Number 107556W
.

\ !\‘ ‘ w~ Cdinarn OIS
Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 032489 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai




M. A. PARIKH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To, : "
The Members of
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are

YUSUF BUILDING, 2np FLOOR, 43, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI - 400 001.
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 3850 - 2202 9187 - I'AX: 91-22-2287 4524 - E-MAIL : maparikh@eth.net



appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion:
We draw attention to the following in respect of:

1. non-provision of interest aggregating to Rs. 11,57,54,829/- on loans other than those assigned
to Asset Reconstruction Company as referred to in Note no. 36(a)

2. non-provision of interest aggregating to Rs. 63,10,34,244/-on loans assigned to Asset
Reconstruction Company as referred to in Note no. 36(b)

The Companies records indicated that the management had not provided for interest as stated in
item no 1 and 2 above. Had the management done so, an aggregate amount of Rs. 74,67,89,073
would have been required to be provided. Accordingly, finance cost, loss for the year, share
holder’s funds and other current liabilities would have been higher by Rs. 74,67,89,073/-.

3. non-compliance with the provisions of sub section (1) of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 relating to appointment of whole-time Chief Financial Officer and whole-time Company
Secretary.

Qualified Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date;
and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

1. The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected in Note no. 11 to
the extent as stated below:
(a) Creditors for capital expenditure Rs. 17,96,87,739.
(b) Dues to banks being recalled by respective banks aggregating to Rs. 73,48,65,952.
(c) Unpaid employee’s dues amounting to Rs. 82,52,583/-.
(d) Unpaid statutory dues Rs. 5,10,32,393 /- .




2. Further to above, we draw attention to Note No. 41 relating to Inter-Company loans/
guarantees granted /received.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis as
referred to in note no. 34 of the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure “A”, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) .
Rules, 2014;

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31t March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure “B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer to Note Nos. 32 (b), 32(d) and 42;

ii. = The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses; and




iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

PGS

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No. 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our report on' Other Legal and Regulatory
‘Requirement of even date

()

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

(@)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us,
discrepancies noticed on such verification have been accounted for.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of freehold
land are held in the name of the Company.

In respect of its inventories:

(a)

(b)

As explained to us, inventories were physically verified during the year by
the management at reasonable intervals.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the
management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to three parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. According to
the terms of arrangement the loans are receivable after one year but within five
years, hence the question of repayment during the year does not arise. There are no
overdue amounts exceeding Rs. One lakh as of year-end with respect to such loans
granted.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans, investment and guarantees made. (Refer Note no. 41)

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable.




(vi) We have broadly reviewed books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect
of services rendered pursuant to rules made by Government of India with regard to
the maintenance of cost records as prescribed under sub section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and are of opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed basic
cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made detailed
examination of cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, except, Tax Deducted at
Source of Rs. 34,96,291/- which is outstanding as of the year-end for a period of more than six
months from their due dates of payment.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, statutory dues
aggregating to Rs. 72,22,914/- which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2016
on account of disputes are given below:

Maharashtra Value
Added Tax Act,2002

Assistant
Commissioner of
Sales Tax.

(viii) The Company has not issued an
according to the information and ex
Company, has defaulted in re

defaults whereof are stated hereunder:

Default on account of non-payment of principal of Term Loan from

y debentures. Based on our audit procedures and
planations given by the management, during the year, the
payment of dues to Banks and a Financial Institution, the

“Banks” as stated

below:
o w
u {ﬁi 3 i
FY 2012-13 | 52,50,000 74,50,000 22,50,000 57,72,000 45,00,000
FY 2013-14 1,75,00,000 2,50,00,000 75,00,000 200,00,000 1,50,00,000
FY 2014-15 3,15,00,000 4,50,00,000 1,35,00,000 3,60,00,000 2,70,00,000
Jun-15 96,25,000 1,37,50,000 41,25,000 1,10,00,000 82,50,000
Sep-15 96,25,000 1,37,50,000 41,25,000 1,10,00,000 82,50,000
Dec-15 96,25,000 1,37,50,000 10,26,80,905 1,10,00,000 82,50,000
Mar-16 22,98,10,000 1,37,50,000 - 1,10,00,000 82,50,000
Total 31,29,35,000 13,24,50,000 13,41,80,905 10,57,72,000 7,95,00,000




Default on account of non-payment of principal of Term Loans from “Others” (Edelweiss

Asset Reconstruction Company - EARC Trust) as stated below:

1,41,14,556

FY 2013-14 | 2,06,00,000 | 4,63,12,351 | 1,53,55,000 | 1,00,88,587 50,29,506
FY2014-15 | 2,70,00,000 | 9,00,00,000 | 3,15,00,000| 1,80,00,000 90,00,000 | 3,15,00,000
Jun-15 82,50,000 |  2,75,00,000 96,25,000 55,00,000 27,50,000 | 96,25,000
Sep-15 82,50,000 | 2,75,00,000 96,25,000 55,00,000 27,50,000 | 96,25,000
Dec-15 82,50,000 |  2,75,00,000 96,25,000 55,00,000 27,50,000 | 96,25,000
Mar-16 82,50,000 |  2,75,00,000 96,25,000 55,00,000 27,50,000 | 96,25,000
Total 8,06,00,000 | 24,63,12,351 | 85,35,5000 | 5,00,88,587 | 2,50,29,506 | 8,41,14,556

Default on account of non-payment of principal of Short Term Loan from “Others” (Edelweiss

Asset Reconstruction Company = EARC Trust) as stated below:

56,54,10,600

Default on account of non-payment of interest on Term Loan from “Banks” as stated below:

FY 2013-14 6,76,14,93 9,67,29, 2,88,89,709 | 7,71,16,200 5,78,44,158
FY 2014-15 6,16,79,521 857,14,882 | 2,59,71,938 | 6,88,43,694 5,40,96,300
Apr-15 55,43,013 78,78,655 23,69,506 63,12,997 49,94,238
May-15 57,99,573 82,43,322 24,79,179 66,05,197 49,92,451
Jun-15 56,85,183 80,80,732 24,30,280 64,74,917 48,93,980
July-15 59,48,324 84,54,752 25,42,767 67,74,611 51,20,500
Aug-15 60,25,367 85,64,258 25,75,701 68,62,356 51,86,821
Sep-15 59,06,524 83,95,338 25,24,898 67,27,004 50,84,517
Oct-15 61,79,910 87,83,920 26,41,764 70,38,366 53,19,856
Nov-15 60,58,019 86,10,668 25,89,658 68,99,543 52,14,928
Dec-15 63,38,417 90,09,216 27,09,522 72,18,891 54,56,304
Jan-16 64,20,513 91,25,903 27,44,616 73,12,390 55,26,974
Feb-16 60,84,080 86,47,708 26,00,798 69,29,223 52,37,364
Mar-16 65,82,473 93,56,109 28,13,863 74,96,847 56,66,394
Total 20,18,65,856 | 28,55,95,110 | 8,58,84,199 | 22,86,12,236 | 17,46,34,785




Default on account of non-payment of interest on Term Loan from “Others” (Edelweiss Asset

Reconstruction Company - EARC Trust) as stated below:

FY 2012-13 - 2,09,35,684 - - - -
FY 2013-14 5,76,00,929 | 17,84,01,229 6,74,36,113 | 3,85,91,389 | 1,92,04,797 6,74,45,885
FY 2014-15 5,14,19,326 | 16,64,49,884 6,02,19,117 | 3,17,87,551 | 1,67,63,355 6,11,30,833
Apr-15 47,15,378 - - - - -
May-15 49,33,631 - - - - -
Jun-15 48,36,321 - - - - -
July-15 50,60,172 - - - - -
Aug-15 51,25,711 - - - - -
Sep-15 50,24,613 - - - - -
Oct-15 52,56,915 - - - - -
Nov-15 51,53,488 - - - - -
Dec-15 53,92,019 - - - - -
Jan-16 51,09,742 | - - - - - -
Total 15,96,28,245 | 36,57,86,797 | 12,76,55,230 7,03,78,940 | 3,59,68,152 | 12,85,76,718

Default on account of non-vayment of interest on Short Term Loan from “Others”
(Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company - EARC Trust) as stated below:

FY2013-14 ]
FY 2014-15
Total

,458
6,92,37,690
7,11,23,148

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the balance sheet and other records, we report that:

(a) the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments).

(b) the term loan availed by the company has been applied for the purpose for which
it is raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not
paid/ provided for managerial remuneration and hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is
not applicable.




(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company and hence clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards (Refer Note no. 28)

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

el

MUKUL M. PATEL
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2016 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31t March 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556 W

o -4

Mukul M. Patel
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016.
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Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Amount in Rupees

I Equity and Liabilities
1 Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 4 40,88,91,950 40,88,91,950
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 (95,73,11,540) (10,66,62,627)
(54,84,19,590) 30,22,29,323
2 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 6 1,90,32,77,957 3,58,75,80,206
(b) Long Term Provisions 7 20,74,486 21,37,878
(¢) Other Non-Current Liabilities 8 35,00,000 35,00,000
1,90,88,52,443 3,59,32,18,084
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 9 57,29,10,600 56,54,10,600
(b) Trade Payables 10 6,47,16,976 6,74,76,650
(c) Other Current Liabilities 11 4,02,50,65,611 2,12,76,84,034
(d) Short Term Provisions 7 5,41,638 4,91,165
4,66,32,34,825 2,76,10,62,449
Total 6,02,36,67,678 6,65,65,09,856
II Assets
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed assets
i. Tangible Assets 12 5,21,75,44,524 6,06,85,10,599
ii. Intangible Assets 12 34,21,64,151 37,56,58,376
iil. Capital Work-In-Progress - 2,07,64,914
5,55,97,08,675 6,46,49,33,889
(b) Non Current Investment 13 - -
(¢) Long-Term Loans and Advances 14 16,14,00,448 5,77,38,843
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 17 - 32,16,979
5,72,11,09,123 6,52,58,89,711
2 Current Assets .
(a) Inventories 15 40,11,599 41,97,644
(b) Trade Receivables * 16 6,00,53,435 2,84,25,591
(¢) Cash and Bank Balances 17 3,88,94,278 3,56,23,197
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 14 19,91,22,400 6,18,94,437
(e) Other Current Assets 18 4,76,843 4,79,276
30,25,58,555 13,06,20,145
Total 6,02,36,67,678 6,65,65,09,856
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial 1-45

statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Nymber 107556W

. NG OL2
*W\\M' \ e —
Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Managing Director Director

Membership Number: 032489 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016




r re Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31

Amount in Ry

ees

1. Revenue:

Revenue From Operations 19 1,97,58,54,641 2,38,23,90,187

Other Income 20 34,42,291 31,26,123

Total Revenue 1,97,92,96,932 2,38,55,16,310

I1. Expenses:

Cost of Operations 21 175,99,18,587 209,40,20,186
Employee Benefits 22 7,35,46,775 7,49,04,705
Finance Cost 23 40,91,72,890 78,57,96,870
Depreciation and Amortization 12 36,91,21,659 39,32,53,760
Other Expenses 24 4,90,19,899 7,04,22,123
Total Expenses 266,07,79,810 341,83,97,644
III1. Loss Before Exceptional Item & T;x (I-II) (68,14,82,878) (1,03,28,81,334)
IV. Prior Period Adjustments (Net) (8,33,317) 37,34,828

V. Exceptional Items (net) 39 15,23,80,492 43,45,222

VI Loss for the year (83,30,30,053) (1,04,09,61,384)
Earnings per equity share 30

Basic and Diluted (20.37) (25.46)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3

See accompanying notes to the financial

statements 1-45

As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 107556W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

e B YOG o

Mukul Patel ' Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner i Managing Director Director
Membership Number: 032489 ' DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016




Arshiyva Rail Infrastructure Limited
Cash: Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2016

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year

Adjustments for :

Depreciation/Amortization

Interest Income

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets

Fixed Assets Written off

Loss on Transfer of Assets

Finance Expense

Sundry Balances Written Back (net)

Bad Debts Written off

Provision no longer required Written Back
Irrecoverable Advance Written off

Settlement of Claims

Fees for Debt Restructuring

Recovery of expenses provided in Earlier Years
Interest on delayed payment of TDS Written Back
Written back of Accrued Interest of Secured Creditors
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Movement in working capital
Increase/(decrease) in Trade and Others Payables
(Increase)/decrease in Trade and Others Receivable

(83,30,30,053)

36,91,21,659

(17,12,994)
1,08,74,220
10,05,28,249
2,22,72,694
40,91,72,890

(2,63,88,527)

Amount in Rupees

(1,04,09,61,384)
39,32,53,760

(18,71,514)
2,63,32,826

78,57,96,870
(1,48,78,546)

9,58,595
(8,23,436) -
36,00,000 -
4,31,93,275 2,39,04,574
30,00,000 -
(38,75,982) -
- (99,22,277)
- (2,10,91,355)
9,68,90,590 14,05,62,955

(22,10,75,727)
(19,40,98,499)

(1,48,33,639)
(2,81,71,457)

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (31,82,83,636) 9,75,57,859
Taxes Paid - (net) 20,74,637 -
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (31,62,08,999) 9,75,57,859
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (1,20,94,349) (81,00,000)
Proceeds from Sale / Transfer of Fixed Assets 27,22,26,118 -
Investment of Fixed Deposit in form of Margin Money - (7,16,979)
Interest Income 17,12,994 18,71,514
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 26,18,44,763 (69,45,465)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long Term Borrowings (net) 5,34,13,097 15,83,66,586
Short Term Borrowings (net) 75,00,000 (1,12,31,723)
Interest Paid (32,77,779) (20,93,91,753)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 5,76,35,348 (6,22,56,890)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 32,71,081 2,83,55,504
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,99,68,613 72,67,693
Earmarked Balances with banks 1,56,54,584 -
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 3,88,94,278 3,56,23,197
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,86,51,776 1,99,68,613
Earmarked Balances with banks* 2,02,42,502 1,56,54,584
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 3,88,94,278 3,56,23,197

*Note:- Earmarked Balances with Banks includes Margin Money Deposits

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership Number: 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

\ | U

Ajay S Mittal
Managing Director
DIN : 00226355

W AN CID

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

1. Corporate Information

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL), a company
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. In April 2008, AL acquired a
license to operate a pan-India rail service, giving rise to ARIL. ARIL is a specialized entity of AL,
offering unprecedented rail infrastructure, including an abundance of modern rakes, customized
containers, new sidings, pan-India network, and superior connectivity. The company is engaged
in container train business and holding Category -~I license which allows the company to operate
on Indian rail network on pan India basis.both Domestic and Exim Traffic. Arshiya Rail’s unique
offerings provide unparalleled efficiencies with capability of large scale evacuation of cargo from
Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones and Customer Sidings.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (*Indian
GAAP”) and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as prescribed under the Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(Act) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of
the Act (to the extent notified).

These accounts are prepared by applying the “*Going Concern” assumption based on future
business plans as referred in Note No. 34.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(i) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements: requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the year. The
difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known or materialised.

(ii) Fixed Assets

(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit
availed, if any) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except
land which is carried at cost. All costs including borrowing cost incurred during pre-
operational period till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized.
Land is carried at its revalued amount being the estimated market value on the date
of revaluation.

(b) Intangible Fixed Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The capitalised
cost of software includes license fees, cost of implementation and system integration
services. These costs are capitalised as intangible assets in the year in which
related software is implemented.

(c) Capital work-in-progress
The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

(iii) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets are capitalised till the date of commencement of commercial operations as part
of cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(iv) Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Tangible Assets

Depreciation on all Tangible Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method in
accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 ( Refer Note no 37).

(b) Intangible Assets

(i) Rail License fees paid for transfer of Concession Agreement is amortized over a
period of twenty years, being the license period as per the agreement.

(ii))  Software (intangible asset other than (iii) below), is amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of three to six years from the date of its implementation based on
management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived
from its use.

(iif) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including
expenditure on implementation is amortised over a period of ten years based on
management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived
from its use.

(v) Leases

Operating lease

Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases
are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.

(vi) Investments

(a) Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition
are classified as long term and are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in
the value of long term investments is made to recognise a decline, other than
temporary.

(b) Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value, computed
individually for each investment.

(vii) Inventory
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.
(viii) Revenue Recognition:

a) Revenue from rail and ancillary operations are accounted on the basis of delivery of
cargo, considering substantial completion of contracted services. While recognizing
the revenue, 7" of the following month is taken as cutoff date for determining the
delivery of cargo vis-a-vis completion of contracted services

b) Revenue from Handling and allied services is recognized on the basis of loading/

unloading of container/cargo, considering the same as substantial completion of
contracted services.




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

¢) Interest and Other Income are accounted for on accrual basis except where the
receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is accounted on receipt basis.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity and Leave Encashment
entitlements.

a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when accrued.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Liability for Leave Encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis as per
the Accounting Standard -15 "Employee Benefits” (AS-15) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Rule 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Accounting for Taxes on Income
a) Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax
Act, 1961.

b) Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing
differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income
that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred Tax assets
are not recognised unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

€) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax liability, is
recognised as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company and the
assets can be measured reliably.

Impairment

At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made
for impairment loss on fixed assets by considering the indications that an impairment
loss may have occurred in accordance with Accounting Standard - 28 “Impairment of
Assets” (AS-28) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

() A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation
and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted
and is determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
year-end date.




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from
past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company.

(c) Contingent Assets are not recognised or disclosed in the financial statements.

(xiii) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and diluted equivalent
shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

(xiv) Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting
Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements and presents the cash flows by operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company.

(xv) Accounting policies not specifically referred to herein are in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles followed by the Company.




_ moutln Rupees

Authorised :

4,50,00,000 (4,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 45,00,00,000 45,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid

4,08,89,195 (4,08,89,195) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 40,88,91,950 40,88,91,950
Total 40,88,91!950 40,88,91,950

(a) Terms and rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs .10/- per share. Each holder of equity share Is entitled to one vote per share. The
shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval of the
Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year

Equity Shares

C)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,08,80,195 | 40,88,91,950 ~4,08,89,195 40,88,91,950
[_Balance as at the end of the year 4,08,89,195 40,88,91,950 4,08,89,195 40,88,91,950

(c) Shares held by the Holding/Fellow Subsidiary

Arshiya Limited (Holding Company )* 3,87,32,491 3,87,32,491

Arshiya Hongk Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) 21,56,704 21,56,704
Total 4,08,89,195 4,08,89,195

( d ) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % of th

Equity Share of Rs 10/- fully pai

Arshiya Limited (Holding Company )* 3,87,32,491 94.73 3,87,32,491 94.73
Arshiya Hongkong Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) 21,56,704 5.27 21,56,704 5.27
Total 4,08,89,195 100.00 4,08,89,195 100.00

* Notes :-
a) Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section 89 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

b) As per the Records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Amount in Rupees

Securities Premium Reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 2,36,03,48,442 2,36,03,48,442
Revaluation Reserve ’

Balance as at the beginning of the year 98,10,78,791 98,10,78,791
Less: Adjustments 1,76,18,860 -
Balance as at the end of the year ’ 96534!59!931 98!10578!791
Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year (3,44,80,89,860) (2,40,62,06,526)
Less: Adjustment on account of Depreciation - (9,21,950)
Add: Loss for the year (83,30,30,053) (1,04,09,61,384)

Balance as at the end of the year (4,28,11,19 913) (3,44,80,89 860)
Total (95,73,11,540) (10,66,62,627)




Secured Loans*(Refer Note No.36)
Term Loans

From Banks

From Others

Unsecured Loan
Inter Corporate Loan
From Holding Company

Less: Amount disclosed under the head "other current
liabilities" (Refer Note No. 11)

Amoun in upee

59,81,25,798 1,49,24,45,388 92,08,37,905 2,67,96,315
1,14,25,95,534 2,02,87,69,290 87,05,00,000 2,68,26,243
1,74,07,21,332 3,52,12,14,678 1,79,13,37,905 5,36,22,558
16,25,56,625 6,63,65,528 - -
16,25,56,625 6,63,65,528 - -
(1,79,13,37,905) (5,36,22,558)

Total

1,90,32,77,957

3,58,75,80,206

*Note:

During the year Secured CDR Lenders has exited from CDR package and as per letter dated 31st July,
CDR on account of failure of the restructuring package (Refer Note No 36). Accordingly on exit from CDI
agreement instead of CDR agreement and hence Funded Interest Term Lo

and due (Refer Note No 11).

(a) The Term loans (from banks & others) are secured by :-

i. First charge on all present and future movable assets (including rakes, containers,

intangibles assets.

il. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets including receivables of the company.

iii. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoters.

Iv. Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantees from Director and a Relative of Director, being Promoters of Holding Company.

v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

(b) Rate of Interest :
- on Term loans range from 15% to 16.50% .

(¢) Repayment Schedule of above Term loan as on 31st March, 2016 are as follows :-

2015 issued by CDR-EG approving the exit from
R, the company will be governed by original loan
an (FITL) created during the tenure of CDR Is transferred to Interest Accrued

equipment's) and immovable properties of the company, including

Financial Year ~

Amount in Rupees

2,52,22,000 |

2,52,22,000

2012-2013 -
2013-2014 8,50,00,000 11,15,00,000 19,65,00,000
2014-2015 15,30,00,000 20,70,00,000 36,00,00,000
2015-2016 18,70,00,000 25,30,00,000 44,00,00,000
2016-2017 22,10,00,000 29,90,00,000 52,00,00,000
2017-2018 26,26,50,000 35,53,50,000 61,80,00,000
2018-2019 31,62,00,000 42,78,00,000 74,40,00,000
2019-2020 26,88,91,703 35,94,45,534 62,83,37,237
Total 1,51,89,63,703 2,01,30,95,534 3,53,20,59,237

(d) Details of continuing default in repayment of Principal amount of Term Loan as on 31st March, 2016 is as follows:-

Amount in Rupees

e) Inter Corporate Loan

Interest free loan repayable after 12 months but before 5 years.

Term Loans from Term'Loans from
Financial Year Banks Others Total
2012-2013 2,52,22,000 - 2,52,22,000
2013-2014 8,50,00,000 11,15,00,000 19,65,00,000
2014-2015 15,30.00,000 20,70,00,000 36,00,00,000
Jun-15 4,67,50,000 6,32,50,000 11,00,00,000
Sep-15 4,67,50,000 6,32,50,000 11,00,00,000
Dec-15 14,53,05,905 6,32,50,000 20,85,55,905
Mar-16 26,28,10,000 6,32,50,000 32,60,60,000
Total 76,48,37,905 57,15!00!000 1,33,63,37,905




7 i

1,638 | | 4,91,16

Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No.26) 20,74,486 21,37,878 5,

Total 20,74,486 21,37,878 5,41,638 4,91,165
Other Non-Current Liabilities _ Amount in Rupees

Security Deposit 35,00,000 35,00,000
Total 35,00,000 35,00,000
Amount in Rupees
S
Secured Loans
From Others:
a) Short Term Loan * 75,00,000 -
b) Working Capital Loan** (Refer Note No.36 (b)) 56,54,10,600 56,54,10,600
Total 57,29!105600 L _56,54,10,600

* The term and conditions relating to short term loan from others are as under:-
i) Rate of Interest on Short Term Loan-Others: 24.00% p.a.
i) The repayment to be made in 12 equated monthly instaliments starting from 30th April 2016

i) Exclusive charge by way of mortgage of immovable property, i.e., land admeasuring 5.62 acres at Khurja held by the company and Holding company.

iv) Irrevocable Power of Attorney (duly acknowledged by bank in which fixed deposit is created) to operate the account in which fixed deposit amounts
shall be released by the bank after closure of bank guarantee.

v) Exclusive Hypothecation on power packs to be acquired. Hypothecation on such power pack to be filed with ROC. insurance of the power packs to be
taken favoring EARC as beneficiary.

vi. Pledge of 100% unencumbered equity shares of the company held by Holding Company and Arshiya Hong Kong.

vi. Pledge of 100% unencumbered equity shares of the company held by Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub limited belonging to holding company
and Cyber log Technology(UAE) FZE.

vii. Pledge of 100% unencumbered equity shares of Arshiya Ltd. belonging to Mr. Ajay Mittal and Ms. Archana Mittal.
viii. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Ajay Mittal and Ms. Archana Mittal.

ix. Corporate Guarantee of Arshiya Limited (Holding Company) and Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited.

X. Priority change & Escrow on entire cash flows of the Company arising out of scheduled movement of all trains between Khurja ICD and the ports,
including cash flows from Allana Sons. written agreement with Allana Sons to transfer all payments to designated Escrow against for all bills raised by
company and Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited.

xi. Cash flow tagging of Escrow mentioned above for creation of reserve account which shall be utilized for payment of EMI for this Loan.

Xii. Post dated cheques by Mr. Ajay Mittal and Mrs, Archana Mittal for the loan amount.

xiii. Other terms and conditions as per term sheet dated 18th November, 2015,

** The term and conditions relatina to Working Capital Loan from others are as under:-

i. First charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets including receivables of the company.

ii. Second mortgage and charge on all present and future movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's) and immovable assets of the
company, including intangibles assets.
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iii. 100% equity shares of the Company held by Holding Company and Arshiya Honkong Limited.

iv. Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantees from Director and a Relative of Director,

v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

c) Rate of Interest on Cash Credit Loan : 14.00% p.a.

d) The amount of other short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 56,54,10,599.60 as on 31st March, 2016 is overdue.

Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 33 & 42)

being Promoters of Holding Company.

Amount in Rupees

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 6,47,16,976 6,74,76,650
! 6,47,16,976 6,74,76,650

*Includes Rs. 41,18,777/- which are outstanding for more than 1

hence presented as "Current".

year. The Company is of the view that these dues will be paid during 2016-17 and

On Term Loans from Others
On Short Term Loan from Others

Statutory Liabilities

Tax Deducted at Source

Service Tax

Provident Fund

Work Contract Tax

Employee Professional Tax

Interest on delayed payment of Statutory Dues

-Other Current Liabilities
Advance received from Customers
Project Creditors

Provision for Expenses

Security Deposit received
Employee's Dues***

11. Other Current L| Amoqm I/j Rupees
i X - [ 31st March, |
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
Term Loans
From Banks * 92,08,37,905 2,67,96,315
From Others 87,05,00,000 2,68,26,244
1,79,13,37,905 5,36,22,559
Interest Accrued and due:
On Term Loans from Banks** 97,65,92,185 73,35,21,245

88,79,94,082
7,11,23,147

72,96,64,379
7,11,23,147

1,93,57,09,414 1,53,43,08,771
63,23,774 96,48,211
4,44,51,238 -
2,51,581 2,42,022
- 12,31,673
5,800 5,800
45,32,415 79,58,410
5,55,64,808 1,90,86,116
64,17,438 48,13,904
17,96,87,739 46,89,05,892
3,81,37,864 3,11,47,815
- 20,000
1,82,10,443 1,57,78,977

24,24,53,484

52,06,66,588

4,02,50,65,611

2,12,76,84,03

* Includes aggregating Rs 44,71,15,905/- loan recalled by banks
** Includes aggregating Rs 28,77,50,047/- interest accrued and due on loan recalled by banks
***Includes Rs. 60,31,124/- which are outstanding for more than 1 year. The Company is of the view that these dues will be paid during 2016-17 and

hence presented as "Current".

(a) Detail of Unpaid Interest on Term Loans as on 31-03-2016 are as follows:

Amount in Rupees
Financial Year Term Loans from Term Loans from Total
banks others

FY 2012-13 - 2,09,35,684 2,09,35,684

FY 2013-14 32,81,94,653 42,86,80,342 75.68,74,995

FY 2014-15 29,63,06,336 38,77,70,066 68,40,76,402

Apr-15 2,70,98,409 47,15,378 3,18,13,787

May-15 2,81,19,723 49,33,631 3,30,53,354

Jun-15 2,75,65,095 48,36,321 3.24,01,416

Jul-15 2,88,40,956 50,60,172 3,39,01,128

Aug-15 2,92,14,505 51,25,712 3,43,40,217

Sep-15 2,86,38,284 50,24,613 3,36,62,897

Oct-15 2,99,63,816 52,56,915 3,52,20,731

Nov-15 2,93,72,816 51,53,488 3,45,26,304

Dec-15 3,07,32,350 53,92,019 3,61,24,369

Jan-16 3,11,30,396 51,09,741 3,62,40,137

Feb-16 2,94,99,173 - 2,94,99,173

Mar-16 3,19,15,674 - 3,19,15674

Total 97,65,92,186 88,79,94,082 | 1,86,45,86,268

(b) Detail of Unpaid Interest on Short Term Loan from Others as on 31-03-2016 are as follows:
Amount in Rupees
Financial Year Amount

FY 2013-14 18,85,458
FY 2014-15 6,92,37,690
Total 7,11,23,148
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Amount in Rupees

Lil

(Trade and Unquoted)
50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Arshiya Rail Siding Infrastructure Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid 5,00,000 5,00,000
up*
Less: Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments 5,00,000 5,00,000
Total - -

Note: * Arshiya Rail Siding Infrastructure Limited is 100 % subsidiary of Arshiya Rail infrastructure Limited
(Refer Note No. 40)

14 Loans and Advances _ . _.Amount in Rupees

Capital Advances
Unsecured, Considered Good 9,60,22,040 34,22,142
9,60,22,040 34,22,142 - -
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 67,48,142 1,04,30,142 2,63,560 3,97,370
67,48,142 1,04,30,142 2,63,560 3,97,370
Loan and Advances to Related Parties
Unsecured, considered good - - 19,43,38,092 5,24,47,785
- - 19,43,38,092 5,24,47,785
Trade Advance to Suppliers - - 19,17,053 6,68,730
Unsecured, considered good - - 19,17,053 6,68,730
Other Loans and advances
Income Tax Payments (net) 5,86,30,266 4,18,34,894 - -
Other Advances (Refer Note No 38) - - 7,01,099 24,51,934
Advance to Employees - - 11,09,051 52,03,534
Prepaid Expenses - - 7,93,545 7,25,084
Service Tax Input Credit - 20,51,665 - -
5,86,30,266 4,38,86,559 26,03,695 | 83,80,552 |
Total 16‘14!005448 5!77!385843 19,91522‘400 6!18‘945437

Details of balances of Loans and Advances to Related Parties are as follows :-

Amount in Rupees

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 4,55,10,217 1,87,44,783

Arshiya Rail Sidings Infrastructure Limited 81,980 25,648
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 14,87,45,895 3,36,77,354
Total 19,43,38,092 5,24,47,785

15. Amount in Rupees

_Inventories

ey ECH; arcives
Stores and Spares 40,11,599 41,97,644

Total 40‘11!599 41,97,644

Amount in Rupees

(Unsecured, considered good)
Outstanding for a period
- exceeding six months from the date they became payable 3,70,706 1,60,572
- others 5.96,82,729 2,82,65,019

6,00,53,435 2,84,25,591

Total




Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Scheduled banks

In Current Accounts
Cash on Hand(As Certified by the Management)

Other Bank Balances

- 1,86,25,480 1,79,65,712
. 26,296 20,02,901
1,86,51,776 1,99,68,613

In Margin Money Deposit (Pledged against Bank
Guarantees/Letter of Credit) 32,16,979 2,02,42,502 1,56,54,584
32,16,979 2,02,42,502 1,56,54,584
Total 32,16,979 3,88,94,278 3,56,23,197

I nteres Aed on Fixed Deposit

Amount in Rupees

4,76,843

4,79,276

4,79,276

Total

4,76,843




arcl

1,97,58,54,641 |

Amount in Rupees

i
2,38,23,90,187

Total

1,97,58,54,641

2,38,23,90,187

Interest Received on :

- Fixed Deposit with Banks 15,36,751 7.31,809
- Income Tax refund 1,76,243 11,39,705
Actuarial gain on gratuity fund - 6,09,750
Miscellaneous Income 17,29,297 6,44,859

Total 34,42,291 31,26,123

.Y 0
1,75,99,18,587

Amount in Rupees

2,09,40,20,186

Total

1,75,99,18,587

2,09,40,20,186

‘ Salary, us & Other Allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds

6,99,13,822
21,65,215

Amount in Rupees

Staff Welfare Expenses 14,67,738 5,64,540
Total 7,35,46,775 7,49,04,705

Amount in Rupees

L Marchiv201¢ jarch? .

Interest on Borrowini 40,31,99,187 77,91,38,125
Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 31,95,924 56,34,760
Interest - Others 27,772,779 10,23,985
Total 40,91,72,890 78,57,96,870

24. Other Expenses

Amount in Ruj

Electricity charges 6,86,63
Rent 1,47,49,921 1,49,53,654
in
- Building 19,29,373 26,90,387
- Others 8,17,214 7,39,781
Insurance 15,07,168 20,24,700
Rates & Taxes 3,19,207 3,38,250
Legal and Professional charges 1,12,31,933 2,01,30,288
Bad Debts 9,58,595 91,42,791
Claim Recoverable Written Off - 8,44,784
Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 3,51,748 9,450
Bank and Other charges 2,98,846 23,70,216
Communication expenses 16,10,961 18,64,505
Travelling and Conveyance expenses 78,14,697 77,41,426
Vehicle expenses 11,96,786 13,34,949
Printing and stationery 2,85,836 3,38,169
Security charges 38,28,444 35,49,111
- Audit fees 8,04,000 8,00,000
- Other Services - 23,500
-Reimbursement of expenses 25,000 14,500
Miscellaneous expenses 6,03,536 8,47,420
Total 4,90,19,899 7,04,22,123




Notes to the financial statements

25 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances paid) 6,24,80,161 4,00,97,641

Total £:24.80.161 | 4.00,97,641 |

26 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

a - Brief descriptions of the plans
The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund where the Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company's defined
benefit plans include gratuity. The employees are also entitled to leave encash as per the Company's policy.

b - Defined Benefit Plan
. Amount in Rupees

e T v

G Lo :
I - Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.55% 7.80% 7.55% 7.80%
Rate of Return on plan assets 7.55% 9.00%! 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
II - Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 34,94,433 35,66,916 26,29,703 30,75,862
Service Cost 9,36,870 11,25,294 7,81,251 8,48,498
Interest Cost 2,64,218 3,16,360 1,72,874 2,85,748
Past Interest Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) Nit Nil Nit Nil
Liability Transferred in/(out) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Benefits Paid (2,14,038) (3,23,077) (8,25,485) -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (2,62,540) (11,91,060) (1,41,589) (15,81,035)
Liability at the End of the Year 42,18,943 34,94,433 26,16,754 26,29,073
III - Fair Value of Planned Assets: .
Fair Value of Planned assets at the beginning of the year 39,31,258 28,08,991 - -
Expected Return on plan assets 3,53,813 2,30,328 - -
Contributions Nil Nil Nil Nil
Transfer from other company Nil Nil Nil Nit
Actual Enterprise's Contributions 2,14,038 - - -
Benefits Paid (2,14,038) (3,23,077) - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (10,489) 12,15,016 - -
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 42,74,582 39,31,258 - -
IV, Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Asset 3,53,813 2,30,328 - -
Actuartal Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets (10,489) 12,15,016 - -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 3,43,324 14,45,344 | - - -
V. A Recognized in the Bal Sheet
Liability at the end of the period 42,18,943 34,94,433 5,41,638 4,91,196
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 42,74,582 39,31,258 - -
Unrecognized past service cost . Nil Nil Nil Nil
Non Current Liability at the end of the year - - 20,74,486 21,37,877
Liability recognized in balance sheet (55,639) (4,36,825) 26,16,124 26,29,073
VI. P of each y of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
Insured Managed Fund 100% 100%




VII. Exp Recognized in the S of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 9,36,870 11,25,294 7,81,251 8,48,498
Interest Cost 2,64,218 3,16,360 1,72,874 2,85,748
Expected return of Plan Assets (3,53,813) (2,30,328) - -
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (2,52,051) (24,06,076) (1,41,589) (15,81,035)
Plan Service Cost Nil Nil Nil Nit
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss ’ 5,95,224 (11,94,750)| 8,12,536 (4,46,789)

VIII. Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability (4,36,825) 7,57,925 26,29,073 30,75,862
Expense as above 5,95,224 (11,94,750) 8,12,536 (4,46,789)
Employers Contribution (2,14,038) - (8,25,485)
Net Transfers-In from other companies Nit Nit Nil
Net Transfers-Qut from other companies Nil Nil Nil
Closing Net Liability 55,639 4,36,825 26,16,124 26,29,073
IX. E d ployers contribution in the next year
As per Actuarial Valuation report . 4,49,337 2,89,782 - -
Note:
“Contribution to provident and gratuity fund” is recognised as an expense in Note no. 22 of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

27 Disclosure pursuant to A ing Standard 17 - S infor

The company is primarily engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining infrastructure facilities - Rail System, which consist of Pan India Rail Freight
and allied Operations. In the opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by same set of risk and returns and hence the same has been considered as
representing the single primary segment.

The company provides services within India and hence does not have any operation in economic environments with different risk and returns. Hence, it is considered
that the company is operating in single geographical segment,

28 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party discl es:

(i) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships: -

e —

1 [Arshiya Limited ~THolding Company —
Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
2 |Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Arshiya Hong Kong Limited

Mr. Ajay S. Mittal - Director

Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

Mr, Ashish Kumar Bairagra - Director .
3 mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah - irector Key Managerial Personne (KMP)
Mr, Ranjit Ray - Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Savita Dalat - Company Secretary (Resigned on 10th July, 2015)

Fellow Subsidiaries

Note: The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relled upon by the

auditors.
(ii) Summary of significant related party transactions (as identified by the management) carried out in the ordinary of busi are as
Amount In Rupees
i bs any L Elii . Holding ~ :
5 c @

Loans Taken )
Balance as at the beginning of the year - - . - 6,63,65,527 1,93,06,416
Loans Taken during the year - - - - 11,64,93,001 8,59,79,925
Loans Repaid during the year - - - - (2,03,01,903) (3,89,20,814)
Issue of Equity Shares including Securities Premium - - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year - - - - 16,25,56,624 6,63,65,527
Purchase of Fixed Asset - - - - 70,37,907 -
Loans Given
Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,‘24,22,137 - 25,648 - - -
Loans Given during the year 14,81,82,843 5,36,37,356 56,332 25,648 - -
Loans Repaid during the year (63,48,868) (12,15,219) - - - -
Issue of Equity Shares including Securities Premium
Balance as at the end of the year 19,42,56,112 | 5,24,22,137 81,980 25,648 - -
Corporate Guarantee Received - - - - 7,65,48,19,332| 8,33,17,41,226




29

30

31

32

33

Amount in Rupees _

a) Chief Executive Officer 1,12,29,744 1,05,12,239
b) Company Secretary (Resigned on 10th July, 2015) 2,29,346 6,12,242
Lease Discl e under A ing Standrand-19

Amount in Rupees

[Future Lease Payment:

a) Not Later than one year 1,19,03,162 1,37,73,408

b) Later than one year but not later than five years 8,47,200 1,15,52,762

c) later than five years 99,000 -
Total 1.2849362 | 2,53.26170 |

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year:-
Amount in Ruj

Loss for the year — (83,30,30,053)[ (1,04,09,61,384)
Weighted average number of Shares (Number) 4,08,89,195 4,08,89,195
Nominal Value per share 10 10
Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted -20.37 -25.46
Disclosure pursuant to A ing Standard 22: A ing for Taxes on Income:

In view of loss for the year calculated as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”), no provision for taxation has been made.

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, since the
availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible to be ascertained with virtual certainty, Deferred Tax Assets
have not been recognised as a measure of abundant caution.

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

20;17,45,432 26,86,97,480

(a) Capital Goods under EPCG écheme (Refef Note below)

(b) Maharashtra VAT Demand 72,22,914 72,22,914

(c) Bank Guarantee 1,68,00,000 1,68,00,000

(d) Claims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 2,92,70,821 3,69,65,172
Total 25,50,39,167 32,96,85,566

Note :- The Company has procured certain Capital goods under EPCG Scheme at concessional rates of duty. As on 31st March, 2016, the Company has a contingent
liability to pay differential Custom Duty along with interest thereon on such procurement on non fulfillment of certain conditions. The Management is hopeful of
completing the Export Obligation within stipulated time and therefore it does not expect any cash outflow on this account.

DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

(a) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - - R

(b) Interest due on above - -

(c) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year = N

(d) Interest paid

(e) Interest due and payabie for the period of delay - -

(f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

(9) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years - -

Note : Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Company
and relied upon by the Auditors. o




34

35

36
a)

b)

37

38

Preparation of financial statements on * Going Concern” basis
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis in view of the Revival plans referred to in Note No.

35

Revival Plans
The management of the Company is in the process of restructuring its business operations by :-

establishing tie-up with key meta! producers (contract period between 3-5 years) for its container cargo movement operations in India.

Making representation at various levels for rationalization of haulage charges which are expected to enhance its revenue and margins.

The future business prospects expected on account of Inland Container Depot (ICD) being set up by a Fellow Subsidiary and company aiso
commenced Exim business on 27th April, 2016,

Exim sector is a high margin business and the company except better business growth and overall profitability.
clarity and resolution of regulatory issues,
revamping the entire business with an emphasis on operational efficiency.

The above steps shall enable the Company to improve Company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near future.

Borrowings:-

Loans other than assigned to Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC):

1) During the financial year 2013-2014, Secured Lenders (Banks) had approved the restructuring package under “Corporate Debt Restructuring
Package” (CDR).The Company has not been able to generate sufficient cash flows to service the loan repayments/interest payments which
resulted into Company’s borrowings becoming “Non-Performing Assets” (NPAs) with the Banks since then. Such defaults entitle the CDR lenders
to revoke the CDR Package approved by them and hence the CDR Lenders decided to exit the CDR.

i) Further to the above, CDR-EG issued a letter dated 31st July, 2015 approving the exit from CDR on account of failure of the restructuring
package. Upon exit, lenders are entitled to exercise rights and remedies available under the original loan documents. In the absence of any
communication from these lenders, the Company has not provided for additional interest from CDR Cut off date till 31st March 2016 estimated
at Rs.11,57,54,829/- which arises on account of difference between interest rate as approved under CDR package and interest rate decided as
per original sanction terms and penal interest on overdue amount of interest and installment. Had the Company provided for additional
Interest as stated above, on such loans, the loss before tax for the year ended 31st March, 2016 would have been higher by Rs 11,57,54,829/-
. Upon reconciliation and finalization of the estimated entitlements of these lenders, the Company will recognize the liability in its books during
the year in which finality is reached.

Loans Assigned to Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC).
i) Some of the Secured CDR Lenders had assigned their outstanding dues to an ARC, aggregating to Rs.353,76,23,360/- (Including Interest of
Rs.95,91,17,227/-) on the same terms and conditions as per the original loan documents.

i) Pending finalization of the terms of restructuring with ARC, the Company has not provided for interest aggregating to Rs.51,00,09,069/- on
loans assigned to the ARC from the respective dates of their assignment.

iif) Consequent to CDR exit, the Company has not provided for additional estimated interest (from CDR cut of date till 31st March 2016)
aggregating to Rs 12,10,25,175/-.
Had the Company provided for interest on such assigned loans, the loss before tax for the year would have been higher by Rs 63, 10,34,244/-.

iv) On finalization of the terms of restructuring with ARC, the Company will record the effect of the revised terms as to repayment of principal
and interest (including penal interest if any) as referred to in 36 (b) (i) and 36 (b) (iil) above in the period in which it is completed.

Fixed Assets and and Depreciation :

Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and its applicability for accounting periods commencing on or after 1st
April, 2014, the Company has re-worked depreciation with reference to the useful lives of Fixed Assets prescribed by PART ‘C’ of Schedule II to
the Act. Where the remaining useful life of an asset is nil, the carrying amount of the asset after retaining the residual value, as at 1st April,
2014 has been adjusted to the balance of Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases the carrying values have been depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the assets and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Since then, as per the amendment dated 20th August, 2014, the useful life specified in Part C- of Schedule II has been defined to mean that if
the cost of a part of asset is significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of the remaining
asset, useful life of that significant part shall be determined separately and depreciated accordingly.

In the opinion of the Management, the Company’s assets are such that there are no significant parts thereof whose life would be different than
the useful life of the whole asset (Component accounting being a technical matter, the opinion of the Management is relied upon by the
Auditors). Consequently, the Company has continued to provide depreciation in respect of all its assets on the basis as was followed in the
financial year 2014-15, i.e. based on useful lives of the respective assets.

Other Advances as on 31st March, 2015 included Rs. 20,00,000/- being cash seized by the Income Tax Department at the time of search

conducted on 13th June, 2014. The Holding Company has requested the Income Tax Department to adjust the said cash balance against its

outstanding tax dues for the Assessment Year 2013-14 and therefore said cash balance has been transferred to books of account of Holding
. ~.

Company.
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1) Interest on delayed payment of TDS written back (99,22,277)
2) Fixed Assets Written off (Refer Note No. 12) 10,05,28,249 2,63,32,826
3) Written back of Accrued Interest of Secured Creditors - (2,10,91,355)
4) Loss on sale of fixed assets 1,08,74,220 -
5) Loss on transfer of assets 2,22,72,694 -
6) Provision no longer required written back (8,23,436) -
7) Settlement of Claims 4,31,93,275 2,39,04,574
8) Fees for Debt Restructuring 30,00,000 -
9) Irrecoverable Advance written off 36,00,000 -
10) Recovery of expenses provided in earlier years (38,75,982) -
11) Sundry Balance Written Back (Net) (2,63,88,527) (1,48,78,546)

Total 15,23,80,492 43,45,222

The Management is of opinion that, the decline in the value of Investment held by it in Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited ( 100%
subsidiary) of Rs 500,000/-is not temporary and hence, the company has fully provided for diminution in the value of Investment

The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards Inter Company
advances/loans/guarantees granted/received are not applicable, as the same are provided/received in the normal course of business.

Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/cases/other legal proceedings for recovery of the amounts due to them which are
at different stages before the respective judicial forums/authorities. Claims by the said lenders and creditors have been contested by the
Company in those proceedings and not acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this juncture to estimate the financial implications of such
claims.

Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade Payables and Other liabilities other than due from/to

Holding/Fellow Subsidiaries are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any on reconciliation of accounts. Since the extent to which these
balances are subject to confirmation is not ascertainable, the resultant impact of the same on the accounts cannot be ascertained.

As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 the Company is required to appc}lnt a Company Secretary, However,
the Company has not compiled with the said requirement and is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this role.

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to those of current year classification/disclosure.

Signature to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

s W VT Sl e
&\a«/\ i

Ajay S Mittal

Director
DIN : 00226355

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reaistration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel Sl
Partner N
Membership No.: 32489 o

Director
‘DIN : 00613576

Place:- Mumbai
Date :- 25th Mav, 2016

Navnit Choudhary



M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31%t March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

C

YUSUF BUILDING, 2w FLOOR, 42, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBALI - 400 001.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenee about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March

31, 2016;
(b} inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on
that date;
and
(c) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of séction 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. ’

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014, o/



e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act. '

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure “B”; and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

if. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

/VWW@/

MUKUL M. PATEL
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of
the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, we report
that:

i.  The Company does not have any fixed assets. Therefore, the requirements of
Clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable.

ii. The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase any
inventory and hence, the provisions of clause 3(ii} of the Order are not applicable
to the Company

iii. The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence clause 3(iii)
of the Order is not applicable.

iv.  The Company has not granted any loan to directors directly or indirectly and also
no investment has made by the company and hence clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

v.  The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vi.  According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the
Central Government of India vide notification dated 1 April 2014.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to
the books and records as produced before us, in our opinion, there is no
delay in payment of tax deducted at source by the Company.

(b.)According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax,
customs duty and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of
any disputes.

viii. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial
institution, banks, government or debenture holders during ‘the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

X.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

G4



Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided
for managerial hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not-applicable

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For M. A, Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

MUKUL M. PATEL
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place; Mumbai
Date: 25% May,2016



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Rail
Siding and Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over fihancial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial §tatements, whether due to fraud or

error. i ‘9 /



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be détected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of [ndia.

For M, A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 107556W

MUKUL M. PATEL ' @

Partner

Membership No. 32489
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25th May, 2016.



ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016

Amount in Rupees

I Equity and Liabilities
1 Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 3 5,00,000 5,00,000
b) Reserves and Surplus 4 (5,31,542) (4,90,772)
(31,542) 9,228
2 Current Liabilities
a) Trade Payables 5 55,476 71,038
b) Other current liabilities 6 81,980 25,648
1,37,456 96,686
Total 1,05,914 1,05,914
II Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Bank balances 7 1,05,914 1,05,914
1,05,914 1,05,914
Total 1,05,914 '1,05,914
See accompanying notes forming 1-13
part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

&

/

Mukul Patel
Partner
Mem. No. 32489

Place : Mumbai
Dated :25th May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited

Ajay S Mittal

DIN : 00226355

‘\)(w M}‘AOJGU\J
Navnit Choudhary

Director Director
DIN : 00613576



ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

Amount in Rupees

III.Revenue:

II Other Income 8 27,562 -
Total Revenue 27,562 -

IV.Expenses:

Other expenses 9 68,332 42,498
Total expenses 68,332 42,498
Loss for the year (40,770) (42,498)
Earnings per equity share
Basic and Diluted (0.82) (0.85)
See accompanying notes forming 1-13
part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Reg. No. 107556 W Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited
N . NS MOV
R L e
Mukul Patel A Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner - Director Director
Mem. No. 32489 : o DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Dated :25th May, 2016




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
Amountin Rupees

] From Operating Activities:
Operating Profit before Working Capital
Changes

(40,770) (42,498)

Working Capital Changes:
Current Liabilities 40770 42,498

Cash Generated from Operations - -

Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the 1,05,914 1,05,914
beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of

the year 1,05,914 1,05,914
In terms of our report attached.
For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited

Firm Reg. No. 107556W

/VWIMKE% &Qu.,.-\\ gy Nc*«:u_.,::gjb

Mukul Patel ” Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner , j ' Director Director
Mem. No. 32489 R DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Dated :25th May, 2016




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

1) Corporate Information

Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited (‘the Company”), incorporated on 10.02.2010
shall be engaged primarily in the business of setting up/developing/obtaining rail siding
infrastructure/network in India for operation/movement of container/cargo/freight trains.

2) A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis
of accounting and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
("Indian GAAP”) and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as prescribed under the Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the relevant provisions of the Act (to the extent notified).

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(i) Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the year.
The difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in
which the results are known or materialised.

(ii) Revenue Recognition:

Interest and other income is accounted on accrual basis except where the receipt of income
is uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

(iii) Accounting for Taxes on Income

a) Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax
Act, 1961.

b) Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing
differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods
and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred Tax assets are not
recognised unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

¢) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised
as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company and the assets can be
measured reliably.

(iv) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

a. A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation and
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted and
is determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the year-
end date.




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

b. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from
past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

c. Contingent Assets are not recognised or disclosed in the financial statements.

(v) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and
disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and diluted equivalent shares
outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

(vi) Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting
Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements and presents the cash flows by operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company.

(vii) Accounting policies not specifically referred to herein are in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles followed by the Company.




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

3. SHARE CAPITAL Amount in Rupees
=

Authorised

50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,000 5,00,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid_

50,000 (50,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,000 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000 5,00,000

tstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

a) Reconciliation of the shares

e ; Numbeé Am p p
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the . 50,000 5,00,000 5,00,000

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 50,000 5,00,000 50,000 5,00,000

(b) Terms/rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs .10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to
one vote per share. The shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the
Board of Directors and is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the humber of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

<) Shares held by the Holding company

No. of Shares

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited* 50,000 50,000
Total 50,000 50,000

d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares in the Company
Amount in Rupees

TOlii As at 31st March 2016 . "’As at 31st March 2015
Aol _~Amount % of holding Amount % ‘of holdl;
Equity Share of Rs 10/~ fully paid up R
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited* 5,00,000 100 5,00,000 100
Jotal 5,00,000 100 5,00,000 100

* Notes :- .
a) Shares heid by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per
section 89 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) As per the Records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS Amount in Rupees
- e = TS
ulaj

B

Surplus In the Statement of Profit and Los.

Balance as at the beginning of the year (4,90,772) (4,48,274)

(Loss) for the year (40,770) (42,498)

Balance as at the end of the year (5,31,542) (4,90,772)
Total (5,31,542) (4,90,772)

5. TRADE PAYABLES Amount In Rupees
- Sl arch 2016 | 2015
Trade Payable*

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 55,476 71,038

Total 55,476 71,038
ElAA
(* Refer Note no. 13 for dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises)
6. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES Amount In Rupees
e : 31st'March 2016 :
Loan from From Holding Company 81,980 25,648
Total 81,980 25,648




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equialents - Current
Balances with a banks

Amount in Rupees
t

In current account 1,05,914 1,05,914
Total 1,05,914 1,05,914
l AL A

Excess Provision Written Back
Sundry Balances written back

Total

OTHER EXPENSES

Miscellaneous expenses 21,478 8,998

- Audit fees 45,000 15,000

-Out of Pocket Expenses 1,854 -
Total 68,332 42,498

©
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ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

10 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

(i) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and
relationships:-

1 |Arshiya Limited Ultimate Holding
Company
2 |Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited Holding Company
Mr. Ajay S. Mittal - Director
3 {Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director . g::lsonnel Management
Mr. Binu Jacob - Director
Note:

The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS-18
and the same have been relied upon by the auditors.

Summary of significant refated party transactions (as identified by the management) carried out in
(i) the ordinary course of busi are as foll 3

Loan Taken

Balance as at the beginning of the year 25,648 : -
Loan Received during the year - 25,648
Balance as at the end of the year 25,648 25,648
S s:’at.} T B

11 [;Comput “31st'March 2016 | r 5
Net (Loss (40,770) (42,498)
Weighted average number of equity shares Outstanding 50,000 50,000
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10 10
Basic & Diluted EPS (0.82) (0.85)

12 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income:

In view of loss for the year as calculated as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”), no
provision for taxation has been made.
Deferred Tax Assets consist of carry forward losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, since the
availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible to
be ascertained with virtual certainty, the Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognized as a measure of
abundant caution.

13 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

i

(a) Prlyncu—)al amount due and remaining unpaid

(b) Interest due on above - -

(d) Interest paid -

(e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -

(f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

(g) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in - -
succeeding years
Note : Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information collected by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

As per our report of even date

For M,A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Director:
. Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rall Siding and Infrastructure Lim
Firm Registration No. 107556W N
\ N R o
T
/VW Ajay S. Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Mukul Patel Director Director

Partner DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Membership No.: 32489
Place: Mumbai L
Dated :25th May, 2016 :




M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

_ INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To, :
The Members of
ARSHIYA SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Supply Chain
Management Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accountmg estimates made by the

YUSUF BUILDING, 2np FLOOR, 43, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD FORT, MUMBAI - 400 0o01.
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 3850 - 2202 9187 - FAX: 91-22-2287 4524 - E-MAIL : maparikh@eth.net



Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2016;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that
date;

and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of Matter
1. The Company continues to be under financial stress as reflected by:

(a) Unpaid full and final employee’s dues Rs. 55,27,280/-
(b) Unpaid Statutory dues Rs. 8,35,12,453 /-(Refer Note no. 9)

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis as
referred to in Note no. 30 of the Financial Statements.

2. Further to above, we draw attention to the following in respect of:
(i) Note No. 32 Re. Tax deducted at Source.

(i) Note No. 39 Re. Intercompany Advances/Loans/Guarantees granted/received.

‘Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we

give in the Annexure “A” a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.




2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2)

(b)

©

(d)

U

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure “B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial
pany p p g liug
position in its financial statements - Refer to Note No. 34 to the financial
statements;

(i)  The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there could be any material foreseeable losses and hence,
the question of making provision for such losses does not arise.

(iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

ST

Mukul
Partner

Membership No. 032489

M Patel

Place: Mumbai

Date:



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement of even date

()

(vi)

(vii)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

() The Company does not own any immovable property and hence clause 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase any
inventory and hence clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence clause 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, guarantees and security and also not made
any investment and hence clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is operating from a Special Economy Zone and hence, is exempt from
the maintenance of cost records as prescribed under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

(a)  The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory
dues, except Tax Deducted at Source of Rs. 7,54,17,716/- which is outstanding as of the
year-end for a period of more than six months from their due dates of payment.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, service tax,
customs duty and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any
disputes.

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations

given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to it financial institution. '




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the balance sheet and other records, we report that:

(a) the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments).

(b) the term loan availed by the company has been applied for the purpose for which
it is raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our -
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not
paid/ provided for managerial remuneration and hence clause 3(xi) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company and hence clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards (Refer Note no. 26).

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s

/\WW&W

Mukul
Partner

Registration No. 107556 W)

M Patel

Membership No. 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016



Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Supply
Chain Management Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2016 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting,.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over firiancial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 107556W)

il

MUKUL M. PATEL
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016
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Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

I. Equity And Liabilities

1, Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

2. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings
(b) Long-term Provisions

3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term Borrowing
(b) Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-term Provisions

Total

II. Assets
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets
(ii) Intangible Assets

(b) Long-term Loans and advances

2. Current Assets

(@) Trade Receivables

(b) Cash and Bank balances

(c) Short-term Loans and advances

Total

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

See accompanying notes to the financial
statements

As per our report of even date

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Nu?ber 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership Number: 03244

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 25th May, 2016

Notes

11

12

13
14
15

1 to 40

Ajay S. Mittal
Director
DIN : 00226355

31st March, 2016

3,78,71,200
(1,18,49,74,788)

(Amount in ¥)

31st March, 2015

3,78,71,200
(1,21,43,31,777)

1,55,54,30,991 81,87,88,890
6,66,481 6,56,340

- 10,09,500

33,24,949 34,83,231
26,69,64,357 20,23,30,252
42,97,18,692 62,37,68,511
91,83,336 16,33,384
1,11,81,85,218 47,52,09,530
4,26,036 8,01,909
31,56,893 35,51,237
90,70,00,000 27,70,00,000
12,37,62,542 15,03,43,698
2,01,00,956 6,10,508
6,37,38,791 4,29,02,178
1,11,81,85,218 47,52,09,530

Qi SAOIMS
S e

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited .
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)

31st March, 2015

Notes 31st March, 2016
Revenue
Revenue from operations 16 85,36,18,650 68,51,37,199
Other income 17 62,23,604 2,40,06,948
Total Revenue 85,98,42,254 70,91,44,147
Expenses
Operating expenses 18 56,58,93,302 49,54,82,306
Employee benefit 19 2,47,77,020 3,05,29,432
Other expenses 20 1,26,30,539 1,08,34,066
Finance costs 21 22,63,63,683 16,82,98,531
Dépreciation and amortization 11 7,70,217 11,79,060
Total Expenses 83,04,34,761 70,63,23,394
Profit for the year before Exceptional items 2,94,07,493 28,20,753
and Tax
Less: Prior Period Adjustment 22 (1,42,00,000) -
Less: Exceptional Items (net) 23 67,00,504 (75,74,794)
Profit for the year before Tax 3,69,06,989 1,03,95,547
Tax expenses
Current Tax 75,50,000 15,05,000
Prior year Tax Adjustments - (5,81,07,853)
Profit after Tax 2,93,56,989 6,69,98,400
Earnings per equity share
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) 27 7.75 17.69
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial 1 to 40

statements

As per our report of even date

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

i

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership Number: 032489

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 25th May, 2016

P~ )
ot Y Ajay S. Mittal
* @Q/;g‘irector
)‘& _#DIN : 00226355

'?55'1&“\) ‘Nl M’\‘:” MOJW
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Navnit Choudhary

Director

DIN : 00613576

Iql
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Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
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. Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in %)
31st March 2016 31st March 2015
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 3,69,06,989 1,03,95,547
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 7,70,217 11,79,060
Finance Cost 22,63,63,683 16,82,98,531
Reversal of Expense of Prior year (1,42,00,000) -
Bad debts written off 1,91,76,929 90,97,784
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 5,74,079
Interest Income - (16,71,012)
Interest on Delayed Payment of TDS Written back (64,78,231) (1,34,57,528)
Excess Provision Written Back (36,51,172) (1,26,19,493)
Employee Due / Sundry Balance Written back (59,98,194) (32,15,050)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain)/ Loss (24,56,897) (46,13,638)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 25,04,33,324 15,39,68,280
Adjustments for:
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 36,61,265 (6,90,46,091)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities (4,14,83,231) (27,28,476)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances (63,00,00,000) (27,50,00,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term Loans and Advances (2,08,36,613) 7,79,09,046
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 7,86,75,823 (7,38,36,302)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 98,61,124 (4,02,45,826)
Net Cash flow from /(used in) Operating Activities (34,96,88,308) (22,89,79,370)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest income o - 16,71,012
Net Cash flow from/(used in) Investing Activities - 16,71,012
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Short Term Loan Availed / (Repaid) (net) {10,09,500) (85,51,391)
Term Loan Availed / (Repaid) (net) 58,33,08,769 37,71,22,223
Finance Cost (21,31,20,513) (14,93,31,433)

Net Cash flow from/(used in) Financing Activities

36,91,78,756

21,92,39,399

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 1,94,90,448 (80,68,959)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,10,508 86,79,467
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent 1,94,90,448 (80,68,959)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,01,00,956 6,10,508

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

&\"»\\,\'JF-\

Ajay S. Mittal

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel Director
Partner DIN : 00226355
Membership Number: 032489 N Qs
- ————
~ Place: Mumbai Navnit Choudhary

Dated: 25th May, 2016 ’ Director
DIN : 00613576




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

1. Corporate Information

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited (the Company) is a privately held company domiciled
in India and was incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and is a
subsidiary of Arshiya Limited.

The Company is registered as a service unit in Free Trade Warehousing Zone (FTWZ) of Arshiya Limited,
at Panvel, Maharashtra and in FTWZ of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited, at Khurja, Uttar Pradesh.

2. A. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP”)
on a going concern basis and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified prescribed under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of
the Act (to the extent notified).

B. Significant Accounting Policies

i.

ii.

iii.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial statements and the
reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year. The difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialized.

Fixed Assets
(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation {net of cenvat credit availed) less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. All costs including financing costs till
commencement of commercial operation are capitalised.

(b) Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. The
capitalised cost of software includes license fees, cost of implementation and system integration
services. These costs are capitalised as intangible assets in the year in which related software is
implemented.

(c) Capital work-in-progress
The costs of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost comprising direct
cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Tangible Assets: ‘
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Intangible Assets

(i) Software (intangible asset, other than below), is amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of
three to six years from the date of its implementation based on management’s estimate of useful life
over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

(ii) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including expenditure on
implementation is be amortised from the year of implementation over a period of ten years based on
management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.
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iv.

vii.

Revenue Recognition

(a) Revenue from Storage and Management fees is recognized on an accrual basis.

(b) Revenue from Handling and Transportation is based on Inward and Outward movement of
containerized cargo.

(c) Revenue from Value Added Services and other activities is recognised based on completion of agreed
contracted services.

(d) Interest and other income are accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is
uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

Foreign Currency Transactions

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the
date of the transaction. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated at the year-end
exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits include schemes such as provident fund, gratuity and leave encashment
entitlements. -

(a) Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan in respect of Gratuity. The scheme is managed by a Trust (Life
Insurance Corporation of India). The liability for the defined benefit plan is provided on the basis of an
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{c) Other Employee Benefits
Liability for leave encashment entitlement is provided on the basis of independent actuarial valuation.

Lease

Operating lease

Assets taken on lease under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the
lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments under operating lease are recognised as
expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

viii Accounting for Taxes on Income

(a) Provision for current tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred
Tex assets are not recognized unless there are timing differences, the reversal of which will result in
sufficient income or there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
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x.

xii.

(c) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised as an asset only when, based on
convincing evidence, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the
Company and the assets can be measured reliably.

Impairment :

The Company reviews the carrying values of tangible and intangible assets for any possible impairment
at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. '

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the
weighted average number of common and diluted common equivalent shares outstanding during the
year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the outflow of economic benefits
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a
disclosure is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is also made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3 on
Cash Flow Statements which presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of
the Company.

xiii Accounting policies not specifically referred to are consistent with the generally accepted accounting

principles.
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(Amount in ¥)
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

3. Share Capital
Authorised :

40,00,000 (Previous Year 40,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 4,00,00,000 4,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:

37,87,120 ( Previous Year 37,87,120 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 3,78,71,200 3,78,71,200
Total 3,78,71,200 3,78,71,200

{a) Reconciliation of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Number Amount in ¥ Number Amount in ¥
Balance as at the beginning of the year ) 37,87,120 3,78,71,200 37,87,120 3,78,71,200
Balance as at the end of the year 37,87,120 3,78,71,200 37,87,120 3,78,71,200

(b) Terms and rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The share holders who held shares on the record date or entitiled to dividend as may be
proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by the Holding Company / Fellow Subsidiary

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Name of the Shareholder Namber Amountin® Number Amountin €
Arshiya Limited* 33,08,333 3,30,83,330 33,08,333 3,30,83,330
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 4,78,787 47,87,870 4,78,787 47,87,870
37,87,120 3,78,71,200 37,87,120 3,78,71,200

*Notes:- .
(a) Shares held by the Holding Company include 100 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as
per section 89 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) As per the Records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of
shares.

(d) Details of equity shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Name of the Shareholder
Number % of Holding Number % of Holding
Arshiya Limited 33,08,333 87.36% 33,08,333 87.36%
|Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 4,78,787 12.64% 4,78,787 12.64%
Total 37,87,120 100.00% 37,87,120 100.00%
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31st March, 2016

4. Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premium
Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year

Surplus/(Deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Less: Adjustment for depreciation (Refer Note No : 28)

50,28,35,975

(1,71,71,67,752)

(Amount.in ¥)

31st March, 2015

50,28,35,975

(1,78,25,39,229)

Balance as at the end of the year

TOTAL

5. Long -Term Borrowings
Secured Loan
Term Loan - Others

Total

2,93,56,989 6,69,98,400

- (16,26,923)
(1,68,78,10,763) (1,71,71,67,752)
(1,18,49,74,788) (1,21,43,31,777)
1,55,54,30,991 81,87,88,890
1,55,54,30,991 81,87,88,890

The Térm loan facility is secured by:

5.1 Pledge of 49% shares of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited held by Arshiya Limited.
5.2 Exclusive charge in favor of Capital First Limited on present and future Receivables of Company from Panvel

FTWZ.

5.3 Escrow mechanism on the cash flows and receivables of Company from Panvel FTWZ.
5.4 Corporate Guarantee by Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited for the facility extended to Company.
5.5 Personal Guarantee of Promoters of Holding Company i.e. Mr. Ajay Mittal and Mrs.Archana Mittal.

5.6 Demand Promissory Note by Borrower.

5.7 Second charge on the Khurja Land and all assets of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited.

5.8 Term Loan carries interest rate of 14.25% per annum.

5.9 Repayment Schedule of Secured Loan is as follows:-
(i) Refer long term maturities as shown below:

(ii) Refer current maturities of long term loan as referred to in Note No. 9.

Financial Year Amountin ¥
2016-17 25,50,00,000
2017-18 42,00,00,000
2018-19 . 48,00,00,000
2019-20 48,00,00,000
2020-21 17,54,30,991

Total 1,81,04,30,991
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6. Long Term Provisions
Employees Benefits - Leave Encashment

(Refer Note no: 24)
Total

7. Short Term Borrowings
Unsecured:
Loan from Fellow Subsidiary Company
Total

8. Trade Payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(Refer Note no: 31 and 36)
Total

9, Other Current Liabilities

Current Maturities of Long Term Loan

(Refer Note no: 5)
Statutory Dues (Refer Note no: 32)
Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues
Employees dues Payable
Provision for Expenses
Security Deposits
Advance from Customers

Total

10. Short -Term Provisions
Employees Benefits - Leave Encashment
(Refer Note no: 24)

Others

Provision for Taxes
Total

31st March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)

31st March, 2015

6,66,481 6,56,340
6,66,481 6,56,340

- 10,09,500

- 10,09,500
33,24,949 34,83,231
26,69,64,357 20,23,30,252
27,02,89,306 20,58,13,483
25,50,00,000 40,83,33,333
8,35,12,453 13,24,05,632
4,24,80,784 3,57,15,846
87,86,982 1,15,51,805
56,67,519 40,38,225
3,09,90,714 2,28,06,090
32,80,240 89,17,580
42,97,18,692 62,37,68,511
1,28,336 1,28,384
90,55,000 15,05,000
91,83,336 16,33,384
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11. Fixed Assets

(Amount in ¥)
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortization Net Block
As at 1st As at 31st As at 1st - As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
Description Of Assets April, 2015 | March, 2016 | April, 2015 | FOF the year | Adjustment* | o\ %000 | Mareh. 2016 March, 2015
Tangibles
Equipments 9,72,981 9,72,981 6,31,439 2,91,200 - 9,22,639 50,342 3,41,542

Furniture & Fixtures 6,42,993 6,42,993 1,96,219 71,080 - 2,67,299 3,75,694 4,46,774
Computers 48,62,745 48,62,745 48,49,152 13,593 - 48,62,745 - 13,593

Sub Total (A) 64,78,719 64,78,719 56,76,810 3,75,873 - 60,52,683 4,26,036 8,01,909
Intangible
Software Licenses 48,16,774 48,16,774 12,65,537 3,94,344 - 16,59,881 31,56,893 35,51,237

Sub Total (B) 48,16,774 48,16,774 12,65,537 3,94,344 - 16,59,881 31,56,893 35,51,237

Total ( A+B) 1,12,95,493 1,12,95,493 69,42,347 7,70,217 - 77,12,564 35,82,929 43,53,146
Previous Year 1,12,95,493 1,12,95,493 41,36,364 11,79,060 16,26,923 69,42,347 43,53,146 -

Notes:

a. * Adjustment is as per Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.
b. Refer Note No. 28 relating to Component Accounting.
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12. Long Term Loans & advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Security Deposits
With Holding Company
With Others
Total

13. Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Outstanding for period exceeding six months
Considered good

Considered Doubtful
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts

Other Debts
Considered good

Total
14. Cash and Bank balances

Cash on hand
Balance with banks

Total

15. Short -Term Loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
Tax deducted at source
Gratuity Fund Balance (net) (Refer Note no: 24)
Trade Advance '

Prepaid Expenses

Gratuity Deposit

Other Advance (Refer Note no: 37)
Total

31st March, 2016

(Amount in %)

31st March, 2015

90,70,00,000 26,20,00,000
- 1,50,00,000
90,70,00,000 27,70,00,000
2,65,71,429 2,30,78,264
12,35,331 19,59,415
(12,35,331) (19,59,415)
9,71,91,113 12,72,65,434
12,37,62,542 15,03,43,698
17,818 33,711
2,00,83,138 5,76,797
2,01,00,956 6,10,508
5,84,87,715 3,78,68,924
35,10,456 33,94,921
12,46,077 5,36,245
4,89,543 31,788
5,000 5,000
- 10,65,300
6,37,38,791 4,29,02,178
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16. Revenue From Operations
Sale of Services
Total

17. Other Income
Interest
Actuarial Gain on Gratuity Fund
Excess Provision Written Back
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) (Net)
Total

18. Operating Expenses
Operating Expenses

Total

19. Employee Benefit
Salaries, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Staff Welfare expenses
Total

20. Other Expenses
Insurance Expenses
Rates & Taxes
Legal & Professional Fees
Bank Charges
Travelling And Conveyance
Remuneration to Auditors
Audit Fees
Reimbursement of expenses
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

21. Finance Costs
Interest Expense

Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues

Other Borrowing Cost
Total

292, Prior Period Adjustment
Reversal of Penal Interest

23. Exceptional Items
Bad Debts Written Off (Refer Note no: 38)

Interest on Delayed Payment of TDS Written

back (Refer Note no: 32)
Sundry Balances Written Back

31st March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)

31st March, 2015

85,36,18,650 68,51,37,199
85,36,18,650 68,51,37,199
- 16,71,012
1,15,535 14,71,725
36,51,172 1,26,19,493
24,56,897 82,44,718
62,23,604 2,40,06,948
56,58,93,302 49,54,82,306
56,58,93,302 49,54,82,306
2,35,22,287 2,94,99,084
9,74,237 8,77,488
2,80,496 1,52,860
2,47,77,020 3,05,29,432
2,105 11,361
60,019 60,739
19,14,678 20,11,500
19,52,224 18,85,047
52,97,644 22,40,226
8,00,000 8,00,000
25,000 -
- 5,74,079
25,78,869 32,51,114
1,26,30,539 1,08,34,066
21,21,23,472 14,82,60,866
1,34,02,311 1,90,37,665
8,37,900 10,00,000
22,63,63,683 16,82,98,531
(1,42,00,000) -
{1,42,00,000) -
1,91,76,929 90,97,784
(64,78,231) (1,34,57,528)
(59,98,194) (32,15,050)
67,00,504 (75,74,794)
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Defined Contribution plan

The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident

ement Private Limited

nded 31st March, 2016
24 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15(Revised)
a.

Fund and Employees

-Employee Benefits.

State Insurance where the Company has no

further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company's defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees are
also entitled to leave encashment as per the Company's policy. .

. Defined Benefit Plan

(Amount in %)

Particulars

Gratuity (Funded)

Leave Encashment{Unfunded|

31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015 31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016
1. Acturial assumptions
Discount rate 7.55% 7.80% 7.55% 7.80%
Rate of return on plan assets 7.55% 9.00% N.A. N.A.
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
(Amount in %)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment {Unfunded
31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015 31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016
1I. Changes in defined benefit obligations
Liability at the beginning of year 10,80,549 18,20,166 7,84,724 9,91,736
Interest cost 84,483 1,69,093 56,835 67,916
Current service cost 3,35,029 6,82,793 2,58,939 2,86,906
Benefits paid -- -- (1,12,134) (5,21,343
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (1,61,145) (15,91,503) (1,93,547) (40,491
Liability at the end of year 13,38,716 10,80,549 7,94,817 7,84,724
(Amount in ¥
Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016
1II. Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 44,75,470 37,43,362
Expected return on plan assets 4,02,792 3,25,672
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (29,090) 4,06,436
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 48,49,172 44,75,470
(Amount in ¥)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment(Unfunded

31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015 | 31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016

IV. Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 4,02,792 3,25,672 - -

Actuarial (gain)/loss on assets (29,090) 4,06,436 - -

Actual return on plan assets 3,73,702 7,32,108 - -
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25.

26.

- (Amount ing)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015 | 3l1st March, [31st March, 2015
2016
V. Fair value of assets and liabilities
Present Value of defined benefit obligation (13,38,716) (10,80,549) (7,94,817) (7,84,724
Fair value of plan assets . 48,49,172 44,75,475|- -
Plan Assets /(Liability) 35,10,456 33,94,926 (7,94,817) (7,84,724
(Amount in ¥
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015 31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016
VI. Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 3,35,029 6,82,793 2,58,939 2,86,906
Interest cost ) 84,283 1,69,093 56,835 67,916
Expected return on plan assets (4,02,792) (3,25,672) - -
Net actuarial (Gains)/Loss to on obligation (1,32,055) (19,97,939) (1,93,547) (40,491
Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of (1,15,535) (14,71,725) 1,22,227 3,14,331
Profit and Loss
Notes:

"Contribution to provident and gratuity fund" is recognised as an expense in Note no. 19 of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Information

The Company is primarily engaged in providing end to end supply and demand chain solutions to its customers in FTWZ. In the
opinion of the Company, the entire business is governed by same set of risks and returns and hence, the same has been
considered as representing a single primary segment. The Company provides services within India and hence, doesn’t have any
operations in economic environments with different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered that the Company is operating in
single geographical segment.

Related party disclosures, as required f:y Accounting Standard 18 “Related Party Disclosures” as given below:

Name of Related Party Relationship
Arshiya Limited - Holding Company
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Mr. Ajay Mittal - Director (with effect from 28th August, 2014) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director
Mr. Ranjit Ray - Director

Note:
The Related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the
same have been relied upon by the auditors.
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27.

28.

The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties are as follows

(Amount in ¥
Nature of Tra tions Holding Company Fellow Total
Subsidiary
Purchases of Services 39,12,81,394 2,42,70,975 41,55,52,369
(33,46,35,555) (2,04,51,613) (35,50,87,168
Security Deposit Given 64,50,00,000 - 64,50,00,000
(26,00,00,000) (1,50,00,000) (27,50,00,000

1,85,00,00,000

1,85,00,00,000 -

Corporate Guarantee Received * 1,85,00,00,000

Corporate Guarantee Received Cancelled 1,85,00,00,000

1,15,00,00,000 - 1,15,00,00,000

Corporate Guarantee Given Cancelled

Loan Received . -

- {(10,09,500) (10,09,500)

Loan Repaid (Net of Reimbursement of Expenses) - 10,09,500 10,09,500
(95,60,891) - (95,60,891
Balance as at 31st March,2016

Loan Payable ‘ - - -
) - (10,09,500) {(10,09,500
Trade Payable 7,73,00,143 17,23,84,330 24,96,84,473
(2,86,152) (14,59,69,152) (14,62,55,304
Security Deposit 90,70,00,000 - 90,70,00,000

(26,20,00,000} -

(26,20,00,000!
Corporate Guarantee Given -

(1,15,00,00,000) -
1,85,00,00,000
(1,85,00,00,000)

(1,15,00,00,000!
1,85,00,00,000
(1,85,00,00,000

Corporate Guarantee Received *

* Corporate Guarantee is given jointly and severally by Holding Company (Arshiya Limited) and Fellow Subsidiary Company
(Arshiya Northern FTWZ Ltd.).

Note: Figures in brackets represent those of previous year.

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

31st March, 31st March,
Particulars 2016 2015
Profit for the year after tax (Amount in ¥) 2,93,56,989 6,69,98,400
Weighted average number of shares (Number) 37,87,120 37,87,120
Nominal value per share (Amount in %) ) 10 10
Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (Amount in %) 7.75 17.69

Fixed Assets and Depreciation
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relied upon by the Auditors). Consequently,
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emaining useful
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ful lives of the assets and recogn

dated 20th August, 2014,
set is significant to the total cost of the asset and useful 1

ful life of that significant

whole asset (Component accounting being a te
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13 (the Act) and its applicability for acco
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different from the
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29. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income

30

31

32

33

.

by

Deferred Tax @

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act,
1961. However, since the availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible
to be ascertained with virtual certainty, Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognized as a measure of abundant caution.

Going Concern Assumption.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis in view of:

(a) The Company having turned the corner by reporting a profit before tax of 2 3,69,06,989/-.

(b) Increase in volume of business of the Company by providing services to the clients in Free Trade Warehousing Zones(s) (FTWZ)
at Panvel and Khurja, owned by the Holding Company and a Fellow Subsidiary respectively;

(c) The future business prospects expected on account of Inland Container Depot (ICD) being set up by a Fellow Subsidiary.

Details of dues to Micro Small and Medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

(Amount in )
Description 31st March, 31st March,
2016 2015

a. |Principal amount due and remaining unpaid 33,24,949 34,83,231
b. [Interest due on above 20,484 -
¢c. |Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year - -
d. |Interest paid - -

e. |Interest due on payable for the period of delay - -

T. |Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 20,484 -

g. [Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years - -

Note : Dues to Micro and Small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

Tax Deducted at Source (TDS)

During the year,

(a) The Company had deducted income tax at source (TDSJ aggregating to ¥ 8,99,97,498 /- during the current and earlier years from
the amounts payable to Holding Company and one fellow subsdiary company. The Company has not paid the said TDS to the
Government because Holding Company and fellow subsidiary Company has informed that, they have / will discharge their income
tax liabilities on their respective income declared by them in the respective and current years. Accordingly, during the year, the
Company has transferred an amount of € 8,99,97 ,498/- back to the respective parties.

(b) The Company has written back an aggregate amount of ¥ 64,78,231/- representing interest on unpaid tax deducted at source
provided in earlier years on the premise that since the corresponding tax deducted is not payable as mentioned in Note no. (a)
above, interest thereon is not payable and also reversed the provision made towards this in current year.

Details of Foreign Currency Exposure:
Foreign Currency transactions/balances of the Company are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise. The details of
foreign currency transactions /balances of the Company are as follows:

Particulars Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (in 3)
Currency 31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015 31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016
Accounts Receivables USD 17,66,206 32,14,855 11,55,27,522 19,82,27,966
EUR 6,587 57,656 4,85,625 38,24,908
Security Deposit Payables USD 80,935 34,715 52,93,986 21,40,553
EUR 3,609 3,609 2,66,071 2,39,435




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

34, Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

(Amount in ¥
Particulars 31st March, |31st March, 2015
C 2016
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 6,25,000 -
35. Other Disclosures:
Earnings in Foreign Currency
(Amount in X
Particulars 31st March, |31st March, 2015
2016
Revenue from Free Trade Warehousing Zone and related services 84,87,73,222 64,94,18,494

36. Trade Payables includes aggregating to ¥ 39,18,441/- which are outstanding for more than 1 year. The Company is of the view
that these dues will be paid during 2016-17 and hence presented as "Current”.

37. Other Advances as on 31st March, 2015 included ¥ 10,65,300/- being cash seized by the Income Tax Department at the time of
search conducted on 13th June, 2014. The Holding Company has requested the Income Tax Department to adjust the said cash
balance against its outstanding tax dues for the Assessment Year 2013-14 and therefore said cash balance has been transferred

to books of account of Holding Company.

38. The Management has evaluated the recoverability aspects of it’s customers and based on such evaluation it has decided to write-

off the irrecoverable amount of ¥ 1,91,76,929/- (Previous Year 2 90,97,784/-)

39. The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards inter Company
advances/loans/guarantees granted/received to /from group companies are not applicable, as the same are provided /received
in the normal course of business.

40. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged, reclassified wherever necessary to conform to those of current year’s
presentation.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements.

For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Firm Registration Number 107556W E
%_\\ o~ ’:H

/VWW ™, Ajay 8. Mittal

"> Director
"DIN : 00226355

Mukul Patel
Partner ‘ . M
AADIS
Membership Number: 032489 i Na}.’z_——_:_=—'
Navnit Choudhary
Place: Mumbai Director

Dated: 25th May, 2016 DIN : 00613576




M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND
HANDLING LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
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accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India;

(a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;

(b) inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date;
and :

(c) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

The Company continues to be under serve financial stress as reflected by:

Non generation of adequate revenue to ensure regular payment of expenses, statutory dues

inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source and repayment of loan from Holding Company.

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as explained

in Note No. 14

Our Opinion is not modified in all respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

() The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;




(d)

(e)

(0

(8)

In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31st March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure “B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

(i) The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

(ii) The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses,

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

SNRGAT

MUKUL M. PATEL

Partner

Membership Number 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date : 25t May, 2016



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of even date

(i)  Inrespect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides
for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property and hence, clause 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(ii) Considering the nature of the business of the Company is not required to purchase any
inventory and hence, the clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans to parties, covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act, and hence, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted loans to directors directly or indirectly and also no
investment has made by the Company and hence, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence, clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not required to
maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the Central Government of
India vide notification dated 1 April 2014,

(vii) Inrespect of statutory dues:

(@) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory
dues, except tax deducted at source of Rs. 745,544/- which is outstanding as of the
year-end for a period of more than six months from their due dates of payment.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty and
excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
banks, government or debenture holders during the year and hence, clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable.




(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year and hence, clause 3 (ix) of
the Order is not applicable.

x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided during the year for
managerial remuneration and hence, clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company and hence, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards (Refer Note 19).

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and
hence, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him and hence, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable,

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company it is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

/WM

Mukul M. Patel
Partner
Membership Number 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARSHIYA
TRANSPORT AND HANDLING LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2016 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)

"of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul M. Patel i= I

Partner
Membership Number 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

(Amount in X)

. Note Asat Asat
Particulars No | 31stMarch,2016 | 31stMarch, 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
Share Capital 3 500,000 500,000
Reserves & Surplus 4 (105,680,644) (105,369,640)
(105,180,644) (104,869,640)
NON-CURRENT-LIABILITIES
Long -Term Borrowings 5 104,920,823 103,837,371
104,920,823 103,837,371
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade Payables 6
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 65,774 65,774
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other Current Liabilities 7 1,939,439 2,717,404
2,005,213 2,783,178
Total 1,745,393 1,750,909
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible Assets 8 - 3,074
- 3,074
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables 9 1,674,800 1,674,800
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 70,592 73,035
1,745,392 1,747,835
Total 1,745,392 1,750,909
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 1to 21
For M. A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W
. JAS
Wt Mo \ir =
/ a,_—\ .
Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 32489 DIN No0.00226355 DIN N0.00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)

. Year Ended Year Ended
Parti
articuars Notes | 31stMarch,2016 | 31stMarch,2015
Revenue from Operations - -
Total - -

EXPENDITURE:

Finance Cost 11 207,479 281,645
Depreciation 8 3,074 162,528
Other Expenses 12 89,090 3,618,516

Total 299,643 4,062,689

Loss before Prior Period Adjustment (299,643) (4,062,689)
Prior Period Adjustment 13 11,361 -
Loss for the year (311,004) (4,062,689)
Earnings Per Share 18

Basic and Diluted (6.22) (81.25)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 1to21

As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W

o - W et

Mukul Patel ‘i Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016

DIN No.00226355

DIN No0.00613576




Arshiya Transport and Hahdling Limited

Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in %)

. Year Ended Year Ended
1
Particulars 31stMarch,2016 | 31stMarch, 2015
A. | Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Loss for the year (311,004) (4,062,689)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 3,074 162,528
Finance Charges 207,479 281,645
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (100,451) (3,618,516)
Adjusted for:
Decrease in Current Liabilities (932,500) (394,475)
Decrease in Trade Payables - (933,857)
Decrease in Trade Reveivables - 990,570
Net Cash from Operating Activities (1,032,951) (3,956,278)
B. | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Long term borrowing 1,083,451 3,351,547
Finance Charges (52,943) (39,313)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,030,508 3,312,234
Net Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B) (2,443) (644,044)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 73,035 717,079
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 70,592 73,035

As per our report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107556W

S

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

NOW A AOIGAS
~ e _ﬂ'
\*’"‘\*’\-‘q

Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Director Director
DIN No.00226355 DIN No.00613576
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Corporate Information

Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 'the Company’, was incorporated on 5th March, 2010 to engage in the business of
transport and handling of containers/goods within India including movement of containers, cargo, goods trains using Indian
Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain, on lease/license or otherwise container trains, rakes, wagons, bogies and
create, develop or obtain on lease/license basis Railway sidings, Rail yards and Warehouse required for business of the Company.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis of accounting and in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP”) and are in conformity with mandatory accounting
standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as prescribed under the Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Act)
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act (to the extent notified).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the
year. The difference between the actual results and estimates are-recognised in the period in which the results are known or
materialised.

Fixed Assets
(a) Tangible Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit availed) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. All costs including financing costs till commencement of commercial operations are capitalised.

(b) Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The capitalised cost of software includes license fees, cost of
implementation and system integration services. These costs are capitalised as intangible assets in the year in which related
software is implemented.

(c) Capital work-in-progress
The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost comprising direct cost, related incidental
expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight-line method at the rate and manner in accordance with
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Amortisation of intangible assets is provided on a straight-line basis over a period of three to six years from the date of its
implementation based on management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Income from Services

Revenue from Transport Operations is accounted on commencement of journey for movement of cargo/container to the place of
destination considering the same as substantial completion of contract. Revenue from Handling Operations is recognized on the
basis of loading/unloading of container/cargo, considering the same as substantial completion of contracted services.
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Employee benefits
Employee benefits include schemes such as provident fund, Employee State Insurance, gratuity and leave encashment

entitlements.

(a) Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund and Employees’ State Insurance are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Liability for Leave Encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis as per the Accounting Standard -15 “Employee
Benefits” (AS-15) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Accounting for taxes on income
(a) Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(b) Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference between
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods
and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred Tax assets are not recognised unless there is virtual certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

(¢) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company and the assets can be measured reliably.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Assets

(a) A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle an obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not
discounted and is determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the year-end date.

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Company.
(¢) Contingent Assets are not recognised or disclosed in the financial statements.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and diluted equivalent
shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements and
presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles
followed by the Company.




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in ),

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

3. Share Capital
Authorised
50,000 (Previous Year -50,000) Equity Shares of X 10/- each 500,000 500,000
L 1. Subscribed and fully paid -
50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid-up 500,000 500,000

Total 500,000 500,000

(a) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share.The shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is
subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Reconciliation of the Equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015
Number g Number T
As at the beginning of the year 50,000 500,000 50,000 500,000
As at the end of the year 50,000 500,000 50,000 500,000
(c) Shares held by the Holding Company
(Amount in %)
Asat Asat

Name of the Shareholder 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Arshiya Limited * 50,000 50,000

Total 50,000 50,000

(d) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity shares in the Company
(Amount in X)

Asat As at
Name of the Shareholder 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Arshiya Limited * (100%) 50,000 50,000
Total 50,000 50,000

* Notes :-
(i) Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section 89 of]
the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) As per Records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from the shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(Amount in )

Asat Asat
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
4. Reserves & Surplus
Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as at beginning of the year (105,369,640) (100,951,727)
Loss for the year (311,004) (4,062,689)
Adjustment for Depreciation - (355,224)
Balance as at end of the year (105,680,644) (105,369,640)
5.Long -Term Borrowings
Unsecured
Interest free unsecured loan from Holding Company 104,920,823 103,837,371
Total 104,920,823 103,837,371
6. Trade Payables
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 65,774 65,774
Total 65,774 65,774
7. Other Current Liabilities
Employee dues 151,156 151,156
Statutory dues 745,544 1,521,807
Interest payable on delayed payment of statutory dues 862,061 707,525
Provison for expenses 180,678 336,916
Total 1,939,439 2,717,404




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

8. Fixed Assets

(Amount in %)
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Particulars As at As at Asat Depreciation Adjustment Asat Asat Asat
1stApril 2015 | 31stMarch 2016 | 1st April 2015 during the year ) 31st March 2016 | 31stMarch 2016 | 31stMarch 2015
,_.m.:mmr_m Assets . .
Computers 867,495 867,495 864,421 3,074 - 867,495 - 3,074
Previous Year 867,495 867,495 346,669 162,528 355,224 864,421 3,074 -




(Amount in )

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
9, Trade Receivables
Unsecured considered good
Debts outstanding for period exceeding six months 1,674,800 1,674,800
Total 1,674,800 1,674,800
10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks 70,592 73,035
Total 70,592 73,035
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016
(Amount in )
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31stMarch, 2016 31st March, 2015
11. Finance Cost
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 205,036 281,383
Bank Charges 2,443 262
Total 207,479 281,645
12. Other Expelises
Legal and Professional fees 2,375 3,510,288
Auditors's Remuneration
Audit fees 74,425 56,180
Other services - 5,618
Miscellaneous expenses 12,290 46,430
Total 89,090 3,618,516
13, Prior Period Adjustment
Legal and Professional fees 11,361
Total 11,361
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes 10 financial - asements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a "Going Concern" basis in veiw of the Revival Plan refered to note no. 15.

Revival Plan

The Management expects to revive and revamp the business operations of the Company by:

Holding Company is showing increase in turonover year by year and Fellow subsidiary Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited is
also starting Inland Container Depot (ICD} at Khurja. Management has intentioned that transportation business will be managed by this
‘Company that will help it to recover its losses.

Withdrawal of Scheme of Amalgamation
The Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited with the Company has
been withdrawn in the court.

Taxation
In view of loss for the year computed as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”), no provision for taxation has been
made.

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
However, since the availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible to be
ascertained with virtual certainty, Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognised as a measure of abundant caution.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March
2015
Loss for the year ) (311,004) (4,062,689)
Number of Equity Shares 50,000 50,000
Nominal Value Per Share () 10 10
Basic and Diluted EPS 3) (6.22) (81.25))

Related Party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 " Related party Disclosures” as given below

— Holding
Arshiya Limited Company
Mr. Ajay S Mittal - Di -

r. Ajay . ittal - 41rect0}” Management
Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director Personnel

Mr. Binu Jacob - Director (w.e.f. 27/12/2015)

Note: The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of requirements of AS-18 and the same have
been relied upon by the auditors.

The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:
(Amount in )

Holding Company

Nature of Transactions 31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015

[Unsecured Loan
Loan Received 1,083,452 3,351,547

Balance as at year end

Unsecured Loan 104,920,823 103,837,371




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial siatements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

20 Details of dues to Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Asat
As at
. No. Description
S.No P 31stMarch2016 | SlStMarch
2015
a) |Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -
b} |Interest due on abave - -
¢) [Payment made beyond the appointed day during the yearthe interest specified - -
under this Act.
d) |Interest paid - -
e) |Interest due and payable for the period of delay ) - -
f) _|Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
g) |Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years - -
Note: Dues to Micro and Small enterprises have been determined tothe extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information collected by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
21 Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, rearranged and recast wherever necessary to conform to those of current year

classification/disclosures.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Firm Registration No. 107556W
M v \._J“\\ Nayar a0
; N - ——
/WX @ | AN
< \.vd/
&ep ac>

Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 32489 DIN No.00226355 DIN No.00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2016




M. A. PARIKH & CO.

_ _ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES
(INDIA)} PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t
March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view_in order to design audit procedures that are

YUSUF BUILDING, 2vp FLOOR, 43, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI - 400 001.
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 3850 - 2202 9187 - FANX : 01-22-2287 4524 - E-MAIL: maparikh@eth.net



appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

QOpinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
T 2016

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date;
and

{c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) Asrequired by the Companies {Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 qf the Act,
we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

(2) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

cY



(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164{2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure “B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position,

(ii) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable lossés,

(iti} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

MUKUL M. PATEL . @

Partner
Membership No. 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of even date

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence, Clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable.

Considering the nature of the business of the Company is not required to purchase any
inventory and hence, clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act, and hence, clause 3(iii} of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loan to directors directly or indirectly and alsoc no
investment has made by the Company and hence, clause 3{iv) of the Order is not
applicable,

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence, clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not required to
maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the Central Government
of India vide notification dated 1 April 2014.

(vii} Inrespect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
books and records as produced before us, in our opinion, there is no delay in
payment of tax deducted at source by the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty
and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,

banks, government or debenture holders during the year and hence, clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further p_ubli'cl

offer {including debt instruments) and term loans during the year and hence, clause 3
(ix) of the Order is not applicable.



(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided during the year for
managerial remuneration and hence, clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company and hence, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act whereé applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the

- applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company during the year has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence, clause 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For M, A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

/‘WWM//

Mukul M. Patel
Partner

Membership No. 32489
Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May, 2016



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Réport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARSHIYA
TECHNOLOGIES (IND1A) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31¢t March 2016 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date,

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company -considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Centrols over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing; issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed undér section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

@



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls;
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contrel over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 315t March 2016, hased on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

/YK

Mukul M. Patel e
Partner

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25* May, 2016
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Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

{(Amount in T)

Particulars Note Asat Asat
No 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholder’s Funds
(a} Share Capital 3 1,011,580 1,011,580
{(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 142,062 228,772
1,153,642 1,240,352
2. Current Liabilities
{a) Other Current Liabilities 5 94,300 63,448
94,300 63,448
Total 1,247,942 1,303,800
1L ASSETS
1. Current Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 1,247,942 1,303,800
1,247,942 1,303,800
Total 1,247,942 1,303,800
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes te the financial statements 1to12

For M. A, Parikh & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107556W

P

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No.: 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date; 25th May, 2016

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

MOyt A G

Navnit Choudhary
Diractor
DIN No: 00613576

v

Binu Jacob
Director
DIN Na: 06670062




Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

{Amount In %)

Particulars Nate Year Ended Year Ended
No 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Revenue from operations - -
Total - -
Expenses
Other expenses 7 86,710 79,246
Total 86,710 79,246
Loss for the year {86,710) {79,246)
Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted 5 (0.86) (0.78)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 1to12
As per our report of even date
For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W
W NGy At WA OudAr o
#l’
Mukul Patel . Navnit Choudhary Binlt Jacob
Partner Director Director
DIN No:00613576 DIN No: 06670062

Membership No.: 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016




Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

{Amount in T}

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Loss for the year (86,710) (79,246}
Change in current assets and liabilities

Increasé in short term loans and advances - 1,600,000
Increase in current liabilittes 30,852 3,897
Net Cash Flow from Operating Actlvities (55,858) 924,651
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beglnning of the year 1,303,800 379,149

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 1,247,912 1,303,800

For M.A.Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 137556W

/W

Mukul Patel '
Partner e
Membership No.: 32489

Place; Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2016

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

N (-u‘—‘ WOy

Navnit Choudhary

Director

DIN No:00613576
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Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year-ended 31st March, 2016

Corporate Information

Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited 'the Campany', was incorporated an 26th October, 2007 to.éngage in the
business of providing planning, consultancy, tralning and implementation of logistics software products, electronics
commercial solutions and all kinds of Information technology related support services and related consultancy services
and providing any other services in relation to the maintenance of such software.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and accruat basls of accounting and in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP) and are In conformity with
mandatory accounting standards issued by Institate of Chartered Accountants of Indla, as prescribed under the Sectlon
133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provisions-of the Act (to the extent natlfied).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as 6f the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses. for the year. The difference hetween the actual results and estimates are recognised In the period Ih
which the results are kndwn or matertalised.

Revenue Recognition

(a] Revenue from Sale of user licences for software application is recognsied an the transfer of the title of the user
licences.

(b) Revenue from consultancy services related to the informatlon technology is recognised when the services ar¢
rendered, upon éompletion of the actual service perfarmed

Accounting for Taxes on Income
Provision for Current Tax ls.made, based on the tax payahle under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Deféered Tax is recognised, subject ta the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference
between taxable income and accounting income that originate 1n one perlod and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequént periods and are meéasured using retevant enacted ax rates, Deferred Tax assets are not recagnised unless
there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will ke available against which such deferred tax asset
can be realised.

MInimum Alternate Tax {MAT) pald it accordance with tax Yaws, which give rise to future economic henefits in the
form of adjustment of futuré tax liability, is recognised as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence, It is
prabable that the future economlc heneflts associated with it wif] flow to the Company and the assets can be measured
reliably.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it I$ probable that an dutflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle an obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision Is not
discounted aind is determined based on best estimate required to settle the-obHgation at the year-end date.

Contingent Llabilities are disclosed in regpect of possible abligations that arise fram past events but their exisience will
be confirmed by the occurrence or nan-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Contingent Assetsare not recognised or disclosed in the financlal statements.

Earnings per Share:

Rasic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclased using the weighted average number of equity
and diluted equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dllutlve.

Cash Flow Statement:
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out In Accounting Standard 3 an Cash Flow Statements
and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activitles of the Company.

(vill) Acrounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are canslstent with the generally accepted -accounting

principles followed by the Company.




Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

{Amount in T}

. ] As at Asat
Particulars 315t March, 2016_| 31st March, 2015
3. Share Capital

Autherised B
2,50,000 (Previous Year 2,50,000) Equity shares of ¥10/- each 2,500,000 2,500,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,01,158 (Previous Year 1,01,158) Equity shares of ¥10/-each fully pald up 1,011,580 1,011,580
Total 1,011,580 1,011,580

a) Terms/rights attached to the equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shareé having par value of T 18/~ per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share, The sharehalders who held shares on the record date are eatitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of

Directors and is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the Equity sharés will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after-distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be ia the proportion to the number of equity shares

held by the shareholders.

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year :

Asat Asat

Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Equity Shares Equity Shares
Number ¥ Number T
Balance as at the beginning of the year 101,158 1,011,580 101,158 1,011,580
Balance as at the end of the year 101,159 | 1,011580 101,158 1,011,580
<) Shares held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company
Asat Asat
Particulars 31stMarch, 2016 | 31st March, 2015
Equity Shares
1.91,158 (Previous Year 91,158) equity shares are held by the Holding Company viz 91,158 91,158
Cyberlog Technologies International Pte Limited
2. 10,000 {Previous Year 10,000} equity shares are held by the Ultimate Holding 16,000 10,000
Company viz Arshiya Limited
Total 101,158 101,158

d) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the company

Asat Asat
Name of Shareholders’ 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Number % Number %
Equity Shares
1. Cyberlog Technologies International Pte Ltd 91,158 | 90.11% 91,158 90.11%
{Helding Company)
2. Arshiya Limited [Ultimate Holding Company] 10,000 9,89% 10,000 9.89%
Total 101,158 100.00% 101,158 100.00%




Arshiya Technologies {India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statemernits for the year ended 31st March, 2016

{Amount in T)

Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015
4. Reserves and Surplus
Surplusin Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 228,772 108,018
Loss for the year (86,710] {79,246)
142,062 228,772
Balance as at the end of the year 142,062 228,772
5. Other Current Liabillties
Other Creditors (Refer Note No. 10) 94,300 53,448
Total 94,300 63,448
6. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 104 104
Balances with Bank 1,247,838 1,303,696
Total 1,247,942 1,303,800
: Year Ended Year Ended
Particul . ;
articutars 31stMarch, 2016 | 31stMarch, 2015
7. Other Expenses
Legal and Professional fees 2,500 18,500
Aunditor's Remuneration - Audit fees 51,525 21,348
Miscellaneous expenses 32,685 39,398
Total 86‘710 79|246

@
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Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

List of Related Parties
Ultimate Holding Company
- Arshiya Limited

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personmel (KMP) exercise significant control:

- Mega Management Services Private Limited
Key Manaperial Persoonel

Mr, Navnit Choudhary - Director

Mr. Blaw Jacok - Director

Note; The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of requirements of AS-18 and the

same have been relled upon by the auditors.

Transactlons with Related Partles:

Nature of Transactions

Asat
31st March, 20156

{Amount in T}

Ultimate holding Company

Asat
31st March, 2015

Opening Balance

Loan taken

Loan repaid

Advance given for expenses

Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
Refund aof Advance given for expenses

Closing Balance,

28,094

(26,094)

{1.294,044)
39,674
1,244,370

26,094

28,094

Eaterprises over whi

ich KMP exercise significant
control

Nature of Transactions

As at
31st March, 2016

Asat
31st March, 2015

Share Application Money Given

Share Application Money (during the year)
Refund Received during the year

Closing Balance

1,000,000
‘300,000
1,300,000

Earnings per share (EPS)

Asat
31st March, 2016

As at
J1st March, 2015

Loss for the year [¥)
Number of Equity Shares
Nominal value per share (T}
Basic and Dituted EPS [T)

(86,710}
101,158
10
{0.86)

(79.246)
101,158
10
(0.78)

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

5. No.

Description

31st March 2016

31st March 2015

al

Principal amount gue and remaining unpaid

b}

Interest due on above

)

Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year

d)

Enterest paid

[}

Interest due-and payahle far the perlod of delay

[ntetest accrued and remaintng nnpald

Amount of further Interest remainitg due and payable in succeeding

years

Note: Due to Micro and Small enterprises have heen determined to the extent su

information collected by the Company-and relied upon by the Audtiors.




Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

11 Taxatlon
11.1  inview of loss for the year computed as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The. “Act”}, no pravision for taxation
has been maie. )

11.2  Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounts of carty forward lesses and unabsorbed depreciatlon under the Income Tax
Act, 19561, However, since the availability of sufficlent future taxable incomne against which the said benefits can be set off is not
possible to be ascertained with virtual cértainty, Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognlsed as a measure of abundant
caution.

iZ  Previous year's flgures have been regrouped/reciasslfied wherever necessary to conform to those of current year's
classification/disclosures.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

As per our repott of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For M.A.Parikh & Co. Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Chartéred Accountants

Firm Registration No. 107556W

Y- L -
/WWW -
Mukuj Patel Navnlt Choudhary Binu Jacob
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 32489 @ DIN No:00613576 DIN No: 06670062

Place: Mumbai
Date; 25th May, 2016
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